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TURKIYE SINAI KALKINMA BANKASI A.S.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ LIMITED REVIEW REPORT
FOR THE PERIOD JANUARY 1, 2008 — JUNE 30, 2008

We have reviewed the accompanying balance sheet of Tiirkiye Siai Kalkinma Bankasi A.S. (“The
Bank™) as at June 30, 2008 and the related statements of income, changes in shareholders’ equity and
cash flows for the period then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Bank’s
management. As independent accountants our responsibility is to issue a report based on the review
performed on these financial statements.

We conducted our review in accordance with the accounting rules and policies, and the accounting and
auditing standards, set out as per the Banking Act No: 5411. Those standards require that we plan and
perform the review to obtain limited assurance as to whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. A review is limited primarily to reviewing financial statements by applying analytical
procedures, inquiring as to the integrity of the financial statements and making inquiries of management
to obtain information; it is substantially less in scope than an audit and therefore provides a lesser
assurance. We have not performed an audit and. accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention that causes us 1o believe that the accompanying
financial statements do not give a true and fair view of the financial position, the results of its operations
and its cash flows, of Tiirkiye Smai Kalkmma Bankasi A.S. for the period ended June 30, 2008 in
accordance with the prevailing accounting principles and standards set out as per the Article No: 37 of
the Banking Act No: 5411, and other regulations and pronouncements in respect of accounting and
financial reporting made by Banking Regulation and Supervision Agency.

Additional Paragraph for English Translation:

The effect of the differences between the accounting principles summarized in Section 3 and the
accounting principles generally accepted in countries in which the accompanying financial statements
are to be distributed and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) have not been quantified
and reflected in the accompanying financial statements. The accounting principles used in the
preparation of the accompanying financial statements differ materially from IFRS. Accordingly, the
accompanying financial statements are not intended to present the Bank’s financial position and results
of its operations in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in such countries of users
of the financial statements and IFRS.

DRT BAGIMSIZ DENETIM VE SERBEST MUHASEBECI MALI MUSAVIRLIK A.S.
r of DELOITTE TQUCHE TOHMATSU

y

asan Kilig
Partner

Istanbul, August 6, 2008

Member of
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu



THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL REPORT OF

TURKIYE SINAi KALKINMA BANKASI A.S. FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2008

E-Mail Address for Contact Persen: nazllcaau tskb.com. tr

The interim unconsolidated financial report includes the following sections in accordance with “Communiqué on the
Financial Statements and Related Explanation and Notes that will be made Publicly Announced” as sanctioned by the
Banking Regulation and Supervision Agency.

GENERAL INFORMATION ABOUT THE BANK

UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF THE BANK

EXPLANATIONS ON ACCOUNTING POLICIES

INFORMATION ON FINANCIAL STRUCTURE OF THE BANK

EXPLANATORY DISCLOSURES AND FOOTNOTES ON UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
OTHER EXPLANATIONS AND FOOTNOTES

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S LIMITED REVIEW REPORT

The accompanying interim unconsolidated financial statements and the explanatory footnotes and disclosures, unless
otherwisc indicated. are prepared in thousands of New Turkish Lira (“YTL™). in accordance with the Communiqué on
Bank’s Accounting Practice and Maintaining Documents, Turkish Accounting Standards, Turkish Financial Reporting
Standards, related communiqués and the Bank’s records, and have been independently reviewed and presented as attached.

Executive Vice President Head of Financial
Responsible for Financial Control Control Department
\S

¢

ismet CalRt KOCAOMER A. Orhan BESKOK Omer ERYILMAZ Mustafa GOKTAS

Member of Audit Committee Member of Audit ommittee

Kemal Serdar DiSLIi

Contact information of the personnel in charge for addressing questions about this financial report:

Name-Surname / Title : Ayse Nazlica/ Head of Budgeting and Planning Department
Telephone Number 102123345194

Tiirkiye Sinai Kalkinma Bankasi A.S.
Industrial Development Bank of Turkey
Meclisi Mebusan Cad. 161 Findikli 34427 istanbul TURKEY Phone: (+90 21 2) 334 50 50 Fax: (+90 212) 243 29 75
www.tskb.com
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TURKIYE SINAI KALKINMA BANKASI A S.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE INTERIM PERIOD JANUARY 1, 2008 TO JUNE 30, 2008

{Amounts expressed in thousands of New Turkish Lira (TRY) unless otherwise stated.)

SECTION ONE

GENERAL INFORMATION

I

1L

Bank’s Incorporation Date, Beginning Statue, Changes in the Existing Statue

The Bank was established in accordance with the decision of President of the Republic of Turkey
numbered 3/11203 on May 12, 1950. This decision was declared by T.R. Office of Prime Ministry
Procedures Directorate Decision Management on May 12, 1950.

According to the classification set out in the Banking Law No: 5411, the statute of the Bank is
“Development and Investment Bank™. The Bank does not have the license of “Accepting Deposit”.
Since the establishment date of the Bank, there is no change in its “Development and Investment Bank”
status.

Explanations Regarding Bank’s Shareholding Structure, Shareholders Holding Directly or
Indirectly, Collectively or Individually, the Managing and Controlling Power and Changes in
Current Year, if any and Explanations on the Controlling Group of the Bank

Tiirkiye I3 Bankasi A.S. has the authority of managing and controlling power indirectly or directly,
alone or together with other shareholders.



TURKIYE SINAI KALKINMA BANKASI A.S.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE INTERIM PERIOD JANUARY 1, 2008 TO JUNE 30, 2008

(Amounts expressed in thousands of New Turkish Lira (TRY) unless otherwise stated.)
SECTION ONE (Cont’d)
GENERAL INFORMATION (Cont’d)

III. Explanations Regarding the Chairman and the Members of Board of Directors, Audit Committee,
General Manager and Executive Vice Presidents and Their Shares in the Bank
Experience in

o

v

- Banking and
Management
Academic Before
Title Name and Surname Background Appointment
Chairman of the Board of Directors ismet Cahit Kocadmer Undergraduate 53 years
Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors Kadir Akgdz Undergraduate 28 years
Members of the Board of Directors (*) Yavuz Canevi Postgraduate 13 years
Mahmut Magemizoglu Postgraduate 23 years
M. Baran Tuncer (***) Postgraduate 28 years
Burhanettin Kantar(****) Undergraduate 16 years
Kemal Serdar Digli(****) Undergraduate 19 years
Murat Bilgig Postgraduate 15 years
Cem Demirag(****#*) Undergraduate 15 years
Memduh Aslan Akgay Postgraduate 17 years
Member of the Board of Directors and
CEO Halil Eroglu Undergraduate 24 years
Executive Vice Presidents Semseddin Arat Postgraduate 23 years
A .Orhan Beskok Postgraduate 19 years
Seniz Yarcan Undergraduate 16 years
Burak Akgii¢ Undergraduate 14 years
Omer Eryilmaz Undergraduate 20 years
Cigdem igel Undergraduate 17 years
Ufuk Bala Yiicel Undergraduate 20 years
Legal Auditors Zeynep Hansu Ugar Undergraduate 13 years
Mete Uluyurt(**) Postgraduate 12 years

Changes
Title

Legal Auditors
Member of the Board of Directors

Left during the period

Aziz Ferit Eraslan
Ali Onur Ozbilen
Burhanettin Kantar

Appointed during the period

Mete Uluyurt

Mustafa Baran Tuncer

Member of Audit Committee Kemal Serdar Digsli

(*) The shares of above directors in the Bank are symbolic.

(**) In the meeting of Board of the Directors on March 25, 2008; Mete Uluyurt is appointed and declared as the statutory auditor to replace
Acziz Ferit Eraslan.

(***) On April 18, 2008, Ali Onur Ozbilen who is the member of Board of the Directors resigned from his duty. In the meeting of Board of
the Directors on April 30, 2008; Mustafa Baran Tuncer is appointed and declared as a member of Board of the Directors to start his duty until
the next General Meeting according to the article numbered 351 in the Turkish Comunercial Code.

(****) In the meeting of Board of the Directors on March 29, 2008; Kemal Serdar Digli who replaces Burhanettin Kantar after his resignation
from the Audit Committee has been appointed as a Member of the Audit Committee.

(*****) On July 28, 2008. Cem Demirag who was the member of the Baard of Directors resigned from his duty. In the meeting of the Board
of Directors on July 30, 2008; Remzi Altnok was appointed and declared as a member of the Board of Directors to start his duty until the next
General Meeting.

]

[



TURKIYE SINAI KALKINMA BANKASI A S.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE INTERIM PERIOD JANUARY 1, 2008 TO JUNE 30, 2008

{Amounts expressed in thousands of New Turkish Lira (TRY) unless otherwise stated.)

SECTION ONE (Cont’d)
GENERAL INFORMATION (Cont’d)

IV.  Information about the Persons and Institutions that Have Qualified Shares

T. is Bankasi A.S. (is Bank) Group owns the qualified shares that control the Bank’s capital directly or

o indirectly.
"3 Name Surname/Commercial Title Share Shareholding Paid in Unpaid
3 Capital Rate (%) Capital Capital
| T. Is Bankasi A.S. Group 250.489 50,10 250.489 -
- T. Vakiflar Bankasi T.A.O 41.888 8,38 41.888 -
o Under Custody at Merkezi Kayit Kurulusu
) (National Custody Institution) 163.705 32,74 163.705 -
- Other 43918 8,78 43918 -
: Total 500.000 100,00 500.000 -
£ V. Summary on the Bank’s Functions and Areas of Activity
& Tirkiye Sinai Kalkinma Bankasi A.S. (“the Bank™) is the first private investment and development bank
which was established by the Council of Ministers’ resolution number of 3/11203 established in 1950
i with the support of World Bank, T.R. Government, T.R. Central Bank and commercial banks. As per
the articles of association published in the Official Gazette on June 2, 1950, the aim of TSKB is to
4 support all private sector investments but mostly industrial sectors, to help domestic and foreign capital

owners to finance the new firms and to help the improvement of Turkish capital markets. The Bank is
succeeding its aim of developing private sector by financing, consulting, giving technical support and
financial intermediary services.

i

The Bank, which operates as a non-deposit accepting bank, played a major role on manufacturing and
finance sectors in every phase of the economic development of Turkey. The Bank has supported the
development of the private sector by extending medium-term loans to more than 4000 firms. Since
1960s the Bank had continued to finance over 100 firms by investing in these entities as a shareholder.
The Bank has also participated in improvement of capital markets by organizing public offerings of
some firms.

fsy

The Bank has opened two branches in Izmir and Ankara in April 2006 to enhance marketing and
valuation operations.

TSKB Bahrain Branch, is the only branch of TSKB in abroad, started its operations on January 18, 2005
after obtaining the off-shore banking license from Bahrain Central Bank (BMA) on December 30, 2004.
The mission of the branch is to expand to Middle East and exercise all activities including capital
market transactions and giving foreign currency loans.



TURKIYE SINAi KALKINMA BANKASIAS.
Unconsolidated Balance Sheets as of June 30, 2008 and December 31, 2007

J(1n Thousand of New Turkish Lira)

TOTAL ASSETS

Reviewed Audited
CURRENT PERIOD PRIOR PERIOD
ASSETS Note Ref June 30, 2008 December 31,2007
: TRY FC I TOTAL TRY | FC | TOTAL
i L CASH AND BALANCES WITH THE CENTRAL BANK [{}] 331 3.733 4.064 216 ¢ 3151 3367
. 1. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT AND LOSS (Net) ) 18.850 25.414 44.264 67.569 14.661 81.630
: 2.1 Trading financial assets 5578 ° - 5578 50 164 - 50 164
211 Public sector debt securiies 5.041 - 5.041 49.639 - 49.639
212 Share certificates - - - - R
z 213 Other marketable securities 537 537 525 - 525
22 Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss - - - - - -
221 Public sector debt securities - - - - -
; 222 Share cettificates - - R R R R
22 Other marketable securities - - - - R -
. 23 Derivative financial assets held for trading 13.272 25414 38.686 17 405 14 061 31 466
? 1. BANKS ) 23.111 41.452 64.563 16.490 11954 28.444
1v. MONEY MARKET PLACEMENTS - - - - R R
4.1 Interbank money market placements - - - - - -
g 472 Istanbul Stock Exchange money market placements - - - - - -
43 Recevables from reverse repurchase agreements - - - - - -
\ FINANCIAL ASSETS AVAILABLE FOR SALE (Nel) {4) 1.148.443 402.476 1.550.919 1.345.832 322.121 1667953
5 5.1 Share certificates 15.667 2957 15.624 15.784 2,957 18 741
! 52 Public sector debt securities 1.112 470 352411 1.464 881 1.327.045 253 189 1580234
53 Other marketable securities 20.306 47108 67414 3.003 65975 68 978
f VL. LOANS (9) 1.265.878 1.752.262 3.018.140 983.491 1.570.781 2.554.272
[N} Loans 1.265.878 1752262 3018140 983.491 1.570.781 2554272
611 {.oans to Risk Group of the Bank 63 520 65.558 129078 44,160 64 697 108 857
; 612 Qther 1.202.358 1686.704 2.889.062 939,331 1.506 084 2 445 415
62 Non-performing loans 13 080 2308 " 15388 16.187 3233 19.420
63 Specifie provisions (-) {13 080) (2.308) {15.188) (16.187) (3.233) {19 420)
f Vil FACTORING RECEIVABLES - - - - R R
VIl HELD TO MATURITY INVESTMENTS (Net) () - - - - - R
. 81 Public sector debt securities - - - -
E 82 Other marketable securities - - - - - -
1X. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (Net) (7 51.801 - 51.801 99.938 - 99.938
9.1 Accounted for under equity method - - - R - -
i 92 Unconsolidated associates 51.801 - 51.801 99938 - 99.938
921 Financial investmenls 43 521 43,521 91.658 21 658
922 Non-linancial investmenls 8280 8.280 8 280 8.280
? X. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Net) (%) 118.479 - 118.479 110.338 - 110.338
101 Unconsolidated financial subsidiaries 118 160 - 118160 110.019 110019
p 102 Unconsolidated non-financial subsidiaries 319 - 319 319 319
3 X1 ENTITIES UNDER COMMON CONTROL (JOINT VENT.) (Net) ) - - - - -
101 Consolidated under equity method - - -
112 Unconsolidated - - - - R
E )
E 1.2 Financial subsidiaries - - - -
2z Non-(inancial subsidiarics - - - - . R
- X1 LEASE RECEIVABLES (Net) (10) 1.849 229.278 231127 2.707 228.055 230.762
F 121 Finance lease receivables 2128 262 240 264374 3203 267492 270 695
122 Operating lease receivables - - - - - -
o 23 Otlier - - - - - -
124 Uniearned income (- ) (279) (32.968) (33247) {496) 39437) (39933)
] X1 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL ASSETS FOR HEDGING PURPOSES {an - - - - - -
- 151 Fair value hedae - - - - -
5 132 Cash flow hedge - - - -
J 153 Hedge of net invesunent in foreign operatians - - - - . R
P X1V, TANGIBLE ASSETS (Net) 17.224 6 17.230 17.450 7 17.457
i XV. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Net) 319 - 319 323 - 323
] 151 Goodwill - - - -
152 Other 319 319 323 - 323
F XV INVESTMENT PROPERTY (Net) (12) - - - - -
XVIl.  TAX ASSET (3 12.527 - 12.527 27.703 - 22,703
E 17.1 Current tax asset 5800 - 5 800 21659 21 659
P72 Deferred tax asset 6727 - 6727 6.044 6044
XV,  ASSETS HELD FOR SALE AND DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (Net) (4 10.510 - 10510 10.510 - 10.510
181 Assets held for sale 10510 - 10510 10510 | - 1so
- 182 Assets of discontinued operations - - R -
XIX. OTHER ASSETS (5 1.578 50.554 52,132 4.094 46.678 50.772
2.670.900 - 2.505.175 5.176.075 2.686.601 2.196.808 4.883.469

[

The accompanying noles form an integral part of tlus linancial statements

4
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TURKIYE SINAi KALKINMA BANKASI A.S.
Unconsolidated Balance Sheets as of June 30, 2008 and December 31, 2007
(In Thousand of New Turkish Lira)
Reviewed Audiled
CURRENT PERIOD PRIOR PERIOD
LIABILITIES Note Ref. June 30, 2008 December 31, 2007
TRY | FC [ _TOTAL TRY ] FC [ ToTAL
I DEPOSITS (1) - - - - - -
11 Deposits from Risk Group of the Bank - - - - - -
12 Other . - - - - -
. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL LIABILITIES IIELD FOR TRADING ) 14.768 27718 12496 31.780 13.432 45212
(11K FUNDS BORROWED {31 62184 3614327 53.177 34662433 3115210
v, MONEY MARKET BALANCES 576.864 710897 766418 67.670 H34.088
41 Interbank. moncy markat takings - - - - - -~
"’g 42 Istanbul Stock Exchange moncy market takings - - - - - -
Wi 43 Funds provsded undcr repurchase ag; 570 14 140033 710107 766 41% 61670 £34D8%
T V. MARKETABLE SECURITIES ISSUED (Net} - - - - - -
Ao 8illy N - - . . .
52 Asset backed sccurilics - - - - -
3 Bonds - - - B - -
I Vi FIINDS 48 - 4% ki - 72
61 Borrower funds - - - - - -
6.2 Oihers 4% - 48 I - 72
Vil SUINDRY CREDITORS 16.1%0 5672 21862 673 5.964 20.653
v OTHER LIABILITIES (4) - . - . - -
IX. FACTORING PAYABLES . - - . - -
X, LEASE PAYABLES (Net) (&3] 1 513 524 47 295 32
mi Finance kease pavables 12 530 3y Bl I RAN
102 Operating deasc pavables - - - - - -
103 Other - - - . -
14 Deferred finance kease expenses ( - ) o Q4 1 ") (13
A XL DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL LIABILITIES FOR HEDGING PURPOSES {6} - - - - - -
PR Faur value hedge - - - . . B
1 1nz Cash lon hedge - - - - -
13 Hudoe of net investment i forcign operalions - - - - - -
oxn PROVISIONS (7 FUXYE] - 14818 314v6 - 31406
121 General loan boss provisions 256 - 23.0m 17,596 - 19390
122 Reslructunag provisions - - - - -
] 125 Reserve for emplovee benefits 2442 - 242 275 21754
g 124 Insurance (echedcal reserves (Nt} - - - - - -
125 Other provisions 14256 - 14256 LR - n.25G
‘ X TAX LIABILITY (9 8,527 - 8.527 36.238 - 36,258
l 13) Currenl tax habiiy 8517 . 8527 258 36 258
152 Deferred tax habilily - - - - - -
“ hUAY PAYABLES RELATED TO ASSETS HELD FOR SALE AND DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS - 3185 3108 2282 2252
ES 141 Held for sake - 3 s 3.Ahs - 2252 2252
) 147 Disconlmucd operations - - - - - -
XV SUBORDINATED LOANS *) - 58.634 58.654 - 59624 59.024
[ Xvi SIIAREHOLDERS' EQUITY {10} 707.534 {31.921). 675617 738495 (143) 738352
B Paid-in capual SR - 500 K0 4140 b - X010t
b 16.2 Capital resenes (334151 G1920) (63.326) 55787 1145) 55.044
r l1a2l Share preamium - - - - .
3 1612 Share cancdllation profils - - - - - -
£ 1623 Markctable scouritics value ncrease fund 62157 [RIR22)) (94.078) RERT 4 $.270
[ 1624 Tangible asscts revalualion differences p: ks d - 28378 - - -
| 16253 Intangibie assets revalualion differcnces - - - - -
£ 1626 Investment property revaluation differences - - - - -
- a7 Bonus sharcs obtained from 5. subsidiancs and jamilv conleolled cnlilics (Joint Venl ) - - - - - -
' 162% Hedming funds (Effoctive portion) - - - - - -
¥ Ola29 Ac lated + aluation differe from asscts held for sale and from disconlinued operalons - - - - -
E 162 11 Other capilal reserves 34 - 314 - 16,574
' 163 Preutil reserves 167 515 - 167 515 - 135227
. 1031 Leval resenes 42,581 -, 42581 - % 526
Fo1632  Slalulon eserves 22255 - 22135 - 14.501
| 1633 Exlraordman rescrves 977 - 99.779 - 85920
' 34 Olher profil reserves 2920 - 2920 b - 20
o164 Profil ur loss 7428 - 73428 147451 - 147.481
foledl Prioc vears' income/losses - - - - - -
' 1642 Cureent vear income/loss 73428 - 73428 47481 - 7481
s 1635 Muarit shares an - - - - -
£ .
L TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY L4200 148 3.755.927 5.176.478 1.672.346 3.211.123 4.883.469
5
i
N
3
K3

The accompany mg notcs form an integral part of This financial statenens

5
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FTURKIVE SINAI KALKINMA BANKASI A.S.

Unconsolidated Statement of Off-Balance Sheet Contingencies and C i as of June 30, 2008 and December 31, 2007
J(In Thousand of New Turkish Lira)
Reviewed Audited
?
CURRENT PERIOD PRIOR PERIOD
Note Ref. June 30, 2008 December 31, 2007
TRY | FC___| TOTAL TRY | FC | TOTAL
A. OFF BALANCE SHEET CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS ¢(1+11+111) 2.159.003 4.667.434 6.826.437 3.715.454 4.258.483 1.973.937
L GUARANTEES AND COLLATERALS (1).(2) 99.927 477.468 577395 69344 415.387 484.731
g 11 Letters of guarantee WLy 175.041 274,960 69336 147.718 217.054
111 Guarantees subject to State Tender Law - - - - - -
112 Guarantees given for foreign trade operations - - - - - -
113 Other letiers of guarantee 49.919 175.041 274960 €9.336 147.718 217.054
12 Bank loans - - - - 77 77
121 Import letters of acceptance - - - . 77 77
1 122 Other bank acceptances - - - - - -
13 Letters of credn - 203.225 ¢ 203225 - 176439 176.439
131 Documentary letters of credit - 203.225 203225 - 176,439 176 439
1.3.2 Other letters of credit - - - - - R
E 1.4 Prefinancing given as guarantee - - - - - -
15 LEudorsements - - - - - -
151 Endorsements to the Central Bank of Turkey - - - - - -
1.52 Other endorsements - - - - - -
1.6 Securities issue purchase guarantees - - - - - -
1.7. Facloring guarantees - - - - - R
18 Other guarantees 8 9.202 9210 8 91 153 9l.161
1.9 Onher collaterals - - - - - -
1. COMMITMENTS (1%, 42) 331137 818.570 1.149.707 200.503 377.856 578.359
21 Irrevocable commitments 35542 589831 625373 10494 159.827 170321
211 Forward asset purchase and sales commitments 35542 ; 589.831° 625373 10 494 159.827 170.321
] 212 Forward deposit purchase and sales commitments - - - - - -
b 213 Share capital commitment to assoctates and subsidiaries - - - - - -
T 214 Loan garanting commstments - - - - - -
4 215 Secunities underwriting commitments - - - - - -
? 216 Commitments for reserve deposit requirements - - - - - -
217 Payment commitmend for checks - - - - - -
218 Tax and fund liabilsties from export commitments - - - - - -
219 Commitments for credi( card expenditure limits - - - - - -
21.10  Commitments for promotions relaled with credi( cards and banking activities - - - - - -
2111 Receivables from short sale commitments - - - - - -
l 21,12 Payables for short sale commitments - - - - - -
21.13  Other revocable commitments - - - - - -
22 Revocable commitmenls 293,595 228.739 | 324334 190.01¥ 218 429 408.038
221 Revocable loan granting commstments 295 593 225558 521.155 190 (P 215,000 405 (4
: 222 Other revocable commiiments - 3181 3181 - 309 309
1. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 1.727.939 3.371.3% 5.099.335 3.445.607 3.465.240 6.910.847
} 31 Derivative financial snstruments for hedgig purposes - - - - - -
ERN Fair value hedge - - - - - -
312 Cash flow hedge - - - - - -
T 313 Hedge of net investmen( in foreign operations - - - - - -
32 Held for trading transactions 1.727939 * 3371.396 5099335 3445007 3 465240 6,910 847
321 Forward foreign currency buy/sell transactons 63115 66 804 129919 40849 117.323 158172
3 3211 Forward forewn currency transactions-buy 47.950 18474 66,424 40.672 40,360 81.032
3.2 1.2 Forward foreign currency transactions-sell {5105 48 330 63 495 177 76.963 77.140
312 Swap transactions related to f.c. and interest rates 176,438 523,414 699872 144 780 342409 487 195
3221 Foreign currency swaps-buy 69 907 280,208 350.115 27.203 211,543 238 746
3.2.22  Foreign currency swaps-sell 166,531 242 574 349125 117.583 130,097 247.680
3223 Interest rate swaps-buy - 327 327 - 396 390
3.2.24  Inlerest rate swaps-sell - 305 303 - 373 373
323 Foreign currency, interes( rale and securities oplions 1468406 2225438 30693864 2843.008 . 2526918 5 309,926
3231 Foreign currency oplions-buy 718.208 1.093 918 1812126 14193060 1.210.825 2630125
3.232 Foreign currency options-sell T30 19% 1.063 988 1 814186 1.399 91} 1225 990 2 625 g
i 3233 lInterest rate options-buy - 33770 33.776 - 30,036 30,036
3.2.34  Interest rate options-sell - 33776 33776 - 30036 30036
3.2.35  Securities options-buy - - - 23 808 30031 33839
3236  Secunties options-sell - - - - - -
] 324 Foreign currency futures - - - 8.504 8490 16 994
43241 Foreign currency futures-buy - - - 8241 256 8497
3242 Foreign currency futures-sell - - - 263 8.234 8497
325 Interest rate futures - 459359 459.339 - 394754 394 754
3251 Interest rate futures-buy - - - - - -
3252 Interest rate futures-sell - 459359 439339 - 394.754 394754
326 Other 19 900 96.361 16321 408,460 75.346 483 806
8. CUSTODY AND PLEDGED SECURITIES (1V+V+V]) 1.880.181 6.929.105 8.809.286 2007.391 4.991.244 6.998.635
LY ITEMS RELD IN CUSTODY 1.589.148 180.248 1.769.39¢ 1.824.900 115253 1.940.153
41 Assets under managemen( 8.647 4156 - 12 803 6800 4.557 11.357
42 Investment securities held i custody 361761 176092 337833 364593 110.696 475.289
43 Checks received for collection 30 - 30 185 - 185
44 Commercial notes recerved for collecaon - - - - - -
45 Onher assets received for collection - - - - - -
40 Assets received for public olferig - - - - - -
47 Other stems under custody 43691 - 456991 453704 - 433704
48 Custodsans 761 719 - 761719 9 618 - $M.618
V. PLEDGED ITEMS 291.033 6.748.857 7.039.889 182.491 4.875.991 5.058.482
51 Marketable securities 9216 315965 25180 1.554 2941193 295.673
52 Guarantee notes 52.804 1.687.750 1.740 554 25.829 1372.667 1 398 496
53 Commodity - J - - - -
54 Warranty - - - - - -
55 Properties 122 063 ) 2590001 2712 067 47240 1 906 684 2,003 924
56 Other pledged sterns 106 948 2.155.141 2.262.089 57.86% 1 302.521 , 1 360.389
57 Pledged stems-depository - - - - - -
AR B ACCEPTED INDEPENDENT GUARANTEES AND WARRANTIES - ~ - - - -
g 4,039,184 11.596.539 15.635.723 5.722 845 9.249.7127 14.972.572

TOTAL OFF BALANCE SHEET ACCOUNTS (A+B)

The acconspanying notes forin an integral part of this financial statements
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“H TURKIYE SINAI KALKINMA BANKASIAS.
. HUnconsolidaled Income Sialemenls for [he peviods ended June 30, 2008 and June 30, 2007
(In Thousand of New Turkish Lira)
Reviewed Reviewed
INCOME / (LOSS) ACCOUNTS Note Ref CURRENT PERIOD PRIOR PERIOD CURRENT PERIOD PRIOR PERIOD
January [-June 30, 2008 Jaavary 1-June 30, 2007 April [-June 30, 2008 April [-June 30, 2007
- I INTEREST INCOME n 2U8.876 198.37% 104.840 102.643
() Interest on loans 92.20 5.0 52.661 46923
- 1.2 Interest received from reserve deposis 125 577 192 289
I L3 Imterest received from banks 2442 6917 1097 1348
14 Interest received from moncy markal placements 23 106 21 65
[ Irtcrest received from marketable securitics portfolio 114,457 95.651 46,725 45833
[N Held-for-trading financual asscts 73 167 116 149
152 Financial asscts at fair valuc through profit and toss - - - -
153 Available-for-sake fmancia) asscts 113.684 95.184 46,31 45384
s 154 Investment's held-to-matuery - - - -
& 16 Finance lease income 8989 8773 3951 4118
L7 Other interest income 4210 1.176 193 »7
I INTEREST EXPENSES 1 (115.845) (129.192) (69.690) (68.540)
21 Interest on deposils . . - .
22 Intcrest on funds borrovod (65.545) (72.306) (+H4.38781 (6 242)
23 Intcrest on moncy market borow ings (50,3051 3661 (24 786) (31277
24 hterest on sccunitics (ssucd - - - -
23 Other anterest expensc 95 ©n on an
. NET INTEREST INCOME (1- 1) 102931 49.187 35044 34.063
v, NET FEES AND COMMISSIONS INCOME L782 2.023 774 91
41 Foes and comnussions receaved 2488 37 1214 1141
40 Non-cash loans #09 1142 425 307
4.2 Other 1.679 Y32 %% 834
42 Fees and conwmissions pad (T06) (L0s1) (XTI 18540)
422 Non-cash Joans (1) (1) ay )
4235 Other (7051 11.050)! (4 (34N
\S DIVIDEND INCOME 23.392 12.87% 21504 11803
VI NET TRADING INCOME 3) (8.282) s071 532 1933
6.1 Sccurnilics trading gains/ (Josses) 4924 17.m (1 7K 14305
62 Foreign exchange gams/losses (net) (13 206) (12.201) 1322 ¥
Vi OTHER OPERATING INCOME ) 7.528 2.108 1651 4
Vit TOTAL OPERATING INCOME (IIIHV+V+VI+VID) 127.351 91266 626411 51.560
IX. PROVISION FOR LOAN LOSSES AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (-) Q] (1Le33) (L836) 2.5 417
X. OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES (-} (6) (26.266) 20.996) 13.832) 11.143)
XL NET OPERATING INCOME/LOSS) (VI X-X) §9.052 67.434 20.774 0834
Xit. AMOUNT IN EXCESS RECORDED AS GAIN AFTER MERGER - - - -
Xt PROFIT / (LOSS) ON EQUITY METHOD - - - -
XIv. GAIN/(LOSS) ON NET MONETARY POSITION - - - -
XV, PROFIT/(LOSS) FROM CONTINUED OPERATIONS BEFORE TAXES (XI+XII+XIII+XIV) $9.052 67.434 50,774 40534
XVI. TAX PROVISION FOR CONTINUED OPERATIONS (¢) (] (15.624) (11,4941 (5.96%) (0.6331
16) Provision for current income taxes {65761 (17338 07y (11,6421
16.2 Provision for deferred taxes (1.148) 3 K48 (51201) AL
Xvnu NEY PROFITHLOSS) FROM CONTINUED OPERATIONS (XVXVI) ) 73.428 55944 14806 34201
] Xvit INCOME ON DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS - - - -
i 1R Income on assets held for salke - - - -
X 152 Income on sale of assocales. subsidiarics and joutly controlied entitees (Jomt vent.) - . - -
83 Incomc on other discontmued operations - - - -
; XX L.OSS FROM DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (-} - - - -
19.) Loss from assets held for salc - - - -
192 Loss ou sale of associales, subsidarics and joinily comtrolied entitics (Joint vent ) - - - -
193 Loss from other discontinucd operations - - - -
g XN. PROFIT / (LOSS) ON DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS BEFORE TAXES (XVIII-XIX) - - - -
XX\L TAX PROVISION FOR DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (&) - - - -
0 Provision for current income taxes - - -
E 202 Prousion for deferred taxes - - - -
XXIL NET PROFIT/LOSS FROM DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (XX£XXI) - - - -
XVIIL  NET PROFIT/LOSS (XVII+XXID ] 73.428 55944 44806 RERII]]
k' 251 Group's profithoss 73428 35944 44 800 40
232 Minonity shares - - - -
1 per sharc 0,147 0,112 LX) 06K
!

Lt

The accompanying notes form an integra) part of 1his finarcia) statements
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TORKIYE SINATf KALKINMA BANKASI A.S.

of Prefit-Loss ltems Accounted for under Shareholders’ Equity for the periods ended June 30, 2008 and June 30, 2007

(In Thousand of New Turkish Lira)

Reviewed

Reviewed

V.

Vi

VIl

Vil

PROFIT AND LOSS ITEMS ACCOUNTED FOR UNDER SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

ADDITIONS TO MARKETABLE SECURITIES REVALUATION DIFFERENCES

FOR AVAILABLE FOR SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS

TANGIBLE ASSETS REVALUATION DIFFERENCES

INTANGIBLE ASSETS REVALUATION DIFFERENCES

TRANSLATION DIFFERENCES FOR TRANSACTIONS IN FOREIGN CURRENCIES

GAIN/LOSS ON DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL ASSETS HELD FOR CASII FLOW HEDGES

{effective portion of Iair value differences)

GAIN/LOSS ON DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL ASSETS HELD FOR HEDGES OF NET INVESTMENT
IN FOREIGN OPERATIONS (effectlve portion)

EFFECTS OF CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND CORRECTIONS OF ERRORS
OTHER PROFIT/LOSS ITEMS ACCOUNTED FOR UNDER SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY AS PER TAS

DEFERRED TAX OF VALUATION DIFFERENCES
NET PROFIT/LOSS ACCOUNTED FOR DIRECTLY UNDER SHARENOLDERS’ EQUITY (I+11+.+IX)

CURRENT YEAR PROFIT/LOSS

Net changes in fair value of securities (Recycled to ProfitLoss)

Reclassification of and recycliny derivatives accounted for cash flow hedue purposes to Income Statement
Recycling hedge of net investments in foreign operations to Income Statement

Other

TOTAL PROFIT/LOSS ACCOUNTED FOR THE CURRENT PERIOD (X£X1)

CURRENT PERIQOD

PRIOR PERIOD

January I-dune 30, 2008

Janvary 1-June 30, 2007

(79.843)

(61.132)

7627
(133.348)

(736)
(736)

(134.184)

13.737

3635

215)
17.1587

6.8%0
6 kR0

24037

The accompanying notes form an integral part of this financial statements
3
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TURKIVE SINAT KALKINMA BANKASI AS.
Unconsolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the periods ended at June 30, 2008 and June 30, 2007
(in Thousand of New Turkish Lira)

Reviewed

Reviewed

CURRENT PERIOD

PRIOR PERIOD

Note Ref January I-June 30, 2008 January [-June 30, 2007
A. CASH FLOWS FROM BANKING OPERATIONS
Id Operating profit before changes i operating assets and hiabilities 74.703 59.870
(M N Interest received 219.673 i81.128
I.0.2 Interest paid (143.092) (125.164)
Ii3 Dividends received 2.256 12.879
i.i4 Fees and comnisstons received 2.488 3.074
(A Other income 17.304 19.781
I.16 Collections froin previously written off loans 4302 836
7 Paymeuts to personnel and service suppliers (23.535) (16.737)
1.8 Taxes paid (17.368) (15.997)
19 Otleers 12.675 70
i2 Changes n operating assets and liabilities (67.253) 344932
I.2.0 Net (increase) decrease in financial assets 36.023 (34.214)
122 Net (increase) decreasc in financial assets at fair valuc through profit or loss - -
123 Net (increase) decrease in due from banks and other financial institutions - -
[.24 Net (increase) decrease in foans (500.088) (187.267)
1.2.5 Net (increase) decrease it other assets 30.875 (190)
1.2.6 Net increase (decrease) in bank deposits - -
127 Net increase (decrease) in other deposits - -
[.2.8 Net increase (decrease} it funds borrowed 392938 564467
12,9 Net increase (decrease) in matured payables - -
12,10 Net increasc {(decrease) in other liabilities (27.001) 2.136
I Net cash provided from banking operations 7.450 404.802
B. CASII FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
L. Net cash provided from investing activities 45.088 (273.172)
2.1 Cash paid for purchiase of entities under cominon control, associates and subsidiaries - (2.915)
22 Cash obtaited front salc of entities under common coutrol, associates and subsidiaries - -
23 Fixed assets purcliases - (2.400)
24 Fixed assets sales 227 180
2.5 Cash paid for purchase of linancial assets available for sale - (268.037)
26 Cash obtained from sale of financial assets available for sale 44861 -
27 Cash paid for purchase of investment securities - -
28 Cash obtained frain sale of investinent securities - -
29 Others - -
C. CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
i Net cash provided fron: financing activities (2.633) (2.551)
310 Cash obtained from funds borrowed and securities issued - -
32 Cash used for repayment of funds borrowed and securities issued - -
33 Capital increase - -
34 Dividends paid (2.815) (2.724)
35 Payents for fimance leases - (851)
3.6 Other 182 1.024
A Effect of change in foreign exchange rate on cash and cash equivalents (13.206) (12.201)
V. Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 36.699 116.878
Vi Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the period 31.807 i1i.682
VIL Cash and cash equivalents at end of the period 68.506 228.560

The accompanying notes form an integral part of thes financial statements
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TURKIYE SINAI KALKINMA BANKASI A.S.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE INTERIM PERIOD JANUARY 1, 2008 TO JUNE 30, 2008

(Amounts expressed in thousands of New Turkish Lira (TRY) unless otherwise stated.)

SECTION THREE

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

L Basis of Presentation

La Presentation of financial statements:
As prescribed in the Article 37 of the Banking Act No. 5411, banks shall, in line with the
principles and procedures to be established by the Banking Regulation and Supervision Agency
(“BRSA™) upon consulting the associations of financial institutions and the Turkish Accounting
Standards Board taking into consideration international standards, ensure uniformity in their
accounting systems; correctly record all their transactions; and timely and accurately prepare their
financial reports in a style and format that will meet disclosure requirements, clearly reliable and
comparable, and suitable for auditing, analysis and interpretation.
Banks shall not finalize their legal and auxiliary books, records and balance sheets without
ensuring reconciliation with the branches and domestic and foreign correspondents.
The Bank prepares its financial statements and underlying documents according to Communiqué
on Banks’ Accounting Practice and Maintaining Documents, Turkish Accounting Standards,
Turkish Financial Reporting Standards, other communiqués, pronouncements and explanations
about accounting and financial reporting issued by Banking Regulation and Supervision Agency,
Turkish Commercial Code and Tax Legislation.
Amounts in the financial statements, the underlying explanations and disclosures are expressed in
thousands of New Turkish Lira unless otherwise stated.

1.b The valuation principles used in the preparation of the financial statements:

The accounting rules and the valuation principles used in the preparation of the financial
statements were implemented as stated in the related regulations, announcements and decrees of
Turkish Accounting Standards and BRSA. These accounting policies and valuation principles are
explained in the below notes through Il to XXII.

11
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TURKIYE SINAI KALKINMA BANKASI A.S.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE INTERIM PERIOD JANUARY 1, 2008 TO JUNE 30, 2008

(Amounts expressed in thousands of New Turkish Lira (TRY) unless otherwise stated.}

SECTION THREE (Cont’d)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

11.

Explanations on Usage Strategy of Financial Assets and Foreign Currency Transactions

The main sources of the funds of the Bank have variable interest rates. The financial balances are
monitored regularly and fixed and variable interest rate placements are undertaken according to the
return on the alternative financial instruments. The macro goals related to balance sheet amounts
are set during budgeting process and positions are taken accordingly.

Due to the fact that the great majority of the loans extended by the Bank have the flexibility of
reflecting the changes in market interest rates to customers, the interest rate risk is kept at
minimum level. Moreover, the highly profitable Eurobond and the foreign currency government
indebtness securities portfolio have the attribute of eliminating the risks of interest rate volatility.

The Bank liquidity is regularly monitored. Moreover, the need of liquidity in foreign currencies is
safeguarded by monetary swaps.

Commercial placements are managed with high return and low risk assets considering the
international and domestic economic expectations, market conditions, creditors’ expectations and

. their tendencies, interest-liquidity and other similar factors. Prudence principle is adopted in the

placement decisions. The long term placements are made under project finance. A credit policy is
implemented such a way that harmonizing the profitability of the project, the collateral and the
value add introduced by the Bank.

The movements of foreign exchange rates in the market, interest rates and prices are monitored
instantaneously. When taking positions, the Bank’s unique operating and control limits are

watched effectively besides statutory limits. Limit overs are not allowed.

The Bank’s strategy of hedging interest rate and foreign currency risks arising from fixed and
variable interest rate funds and foreign currency available for sale securities:

A great majority of foreign currency available for sale securities are financed with foreign currency

‘resources. Accordingly, the expected depreciation of local currency against other currencies is

eliminated. A foreign currency basket is in terms of the indicated foreign currency to eliminate the
risk exposure of cross currency rates.

To mitigate the interest rate risk, a balanced asset composition is established in compliance with
the structure of fixed and variable rate funding resources.

The hedging strategies for other foreign exchange risk exposures:

A stable foreign cxchange position strategy is implemented. To be secured from cross currency
risk, the current foreign exchange position is taken by considering a specific basket of foreign
currencies.

The foreign exchange gains and losses on foreign currency transactions are accounted for in the
period of the transaction. Foreign exchange assets and liabilities are translated to New Turkish Lira
using foreign exchange bid rates as of the balance sheet date, and the resulting gains and losses are
recorded in foreign exchange gains or losses.

12
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TURKIYE SINAI KALKINMA BANKASI A.S.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE INTERIM PERIOD JANUARY 1, 2008 TO JUNE 30, 2008

{Amounts expressed in thousands of New Turkish Lira (TRY) unless otherwise stated.)

SECTION THREE (Cont’d)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

IIl.

Iv.

Explanations on Forward and Option Contracts and Derivative Instruments

The Bank is exposed to significant financial risk originating from the changes in the interest and
foreign exchange rates as part of its normal operations. The Bank exercises derivative financial
instruments to manage these interest and foreign exchange financial risks.

The Bank generally exercises foreign currency forward, swap, futures and option agreements.

The derivative instruments are accounted for at their fair values as of the date of the agreements
entered into and subsequently valued at fair value. Some of the derivative instruments, although
economical hedges, are accounted for as trading transactions since they are not qualified to be a
hedging instrument as per “Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement” (“TAS 39”).
Realized gains or losses are reflected in the statement of income on these derivative instruments.
Unrealized gains or losses arising from the change in the fair value are recorded in disallowable
expenses or exempt income according to the current tax legislation.

The Bank has no derivative instruments used for hedging purposes.
Interest Income and Expenses

Interest income and expenses are recognized in the income statement for all interest bearing
instruments on an accrual basis using the effective interest method (the rate that equalizes the
future cash flows of financial assets and liabilities to the current net book value).

In accordance with the related regulation, realized and unrealized interest accruals of the non-
performing loans are reversed and interest income related to these loans are recorded as interest
income only when collected.

Fees and Commission Income and Expenses

Fees and commissions received from cash loans, that are not an integral part of the effective
interest rate, and fees for various banking services are recorded as income when collected. Fees
and commissions paid for the funds borrowed, which are not integral parts of the effective interest
rate of the funds borrowed, are recorded as expense on the date of the payment. All other income
and expenses, fee and commission income and expenses, including commissions received from
non-cash loans are recorded on an accrual basis.

13
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TURKIYE SINAT KALKINMA BANKASI A.S.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE INTERIM PERIOD JANUARY 1, 2008 TO JUNE 30, 2008

(Amounts expressed in thousands of New Turkish Lira (TRY) uniess otherwise stated.)

SECTION THREE (Ceont’d)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

VI.

Explanations and Disclosures on Financial Assets

Financial instruments comprise financial assets, financial liabilities and derivative instruments.
Financial instruments constitute the basis of Bank’s trading activities and operations. Risks related
with these instruments constitute majority of total risks. Financial instruments affect liquidity,
market, and credit risks on the Bank’s balance sheet in all respects. The Bank trades these
instruments on behalf of its customers and on its own behalf.

Basically, financial assets create the majority of the commercial activities and operations of the
Bank. These instruments expose, affect and diminish the liquidity, credit and interest risks in the
financial statements.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognized on the settlement date i.e. the
date that the asset is delivered to or by the Bank. Settlement date accounting requires (a) accounting of
the asset when acquired by the institution, and (b) disposing of the asset out of the balance sheet on the
date settled by the institution; and accounting of gain or loss on disposal. In case of application of
settlement date accounting, the entity accounts for the changes that occur in the fair value of the asset
in the period between commercial transaction date and settlement date as in the assets that the entity
settles.

Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of
assets within the time frame generally established by regulation or convention in the market place.
Changes in fair value of assets to be received during the period between the trade date and the
settlement date are accounted for in the same way as the acquired assets.

Fair value differences are not accounted for assets valued at cost or amortized cost; gain or loss of
financial assets at fair value through profit and loss are reflected in the statement of income; gain
or loss of available for sale assets are accounted for under the shareholders’ equity.

The methods and assumptions used in determining the reasonable estimated values of all of the
financial instruments are explained below.

Cash, Banks, and Other Financial institutions:

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, demand deposits, and highly liquid short-term
investments with maturity of 3 months or less following the purchase date, not bearing risk of
significant value change, and that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash. The book
values of these assets approximate their fair values.

Marketable Securities:

The Bank classifies its marketable securities in three groups:

Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss: These transactions are classified in two
categories. (i) Trading securities for the purposes of short term profit taking through sale or buying
back in a near future. (i) The financial assets classified at inception as financial assets at fair valuc

through profit or loss by the Bank. The Bank use such classification above when permitted or for
the purposes of providing a more proper disclosure.
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TURKIYE SINAI KALKINMA BANKASI A.S.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE INTERIM PERIOD JANUARY 1, 2008 TO JUNE 30, 2008

{Amounts expressed in thousands of New Turkish Lira (TRY) unless otherwise stated. )

SECTION THREE (Cont’d)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

VI

Explanations and Disclosures on Financial Assets (Cont’d)

In this category, trading securities are initially recognized at cost and measured at fair value on the
financial statements. Fair values of securities that are traded in an active market are determined
based on quoted prices or current market prices.

The difference between initial cost and fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit and
loss is reflected to interest income or impairment on marketable securities accounts. Interest income
and dividends from financial assets at fair value through profit and loss are reflected in interest
income and dividend income.

Available for sale financial assets are initially recognized at cost including the transaction costs.
The interest income related to securities with fixed and variable interest under available for sale
financial assets are recorded in interest income. After the initial recognition, available for sale
securities are measured at fair value and the unrealized gains/losses originating from the difference
between the amortized cost and the fair value is recorded in “Marketable Securities Value Increase
Fund” under the equity. At the disposal of available for sale financial assets, value
increases/decreases recorded in the securities value increase fund under equity are transferred to
income statement.

Loans:
Loans are financial assets which have fixed payment terms and are not traded.

Loans are initially recognized at cost and measured at amortized cost by using effective interest
rate. The duties, charges and other expenses paid for the collaterals obtained against loans are
accepted as transaction costs and reflected to customers.

15
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TURKIYE SINAI KALKINMA BANKASI A.S.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE INTERIM PERIOD JANUARY 1, 2008 TO JUNE 30, 2008

{Amounts expressed in thousands of New Turkish Lira (TRY) unless otherwise stated.)

SECTION THREE (Cont’d)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

VL.

VIIL.

Explanations and Disclosures on Financial Assets (Cont’d)

New Turkish Lira (“TRY™) cash loans are composed of foreign currency indexed loans, export
guaranteed loans, loans financed by government funds. Foreign currency (“FC”) cash loans are
composed of export financing loans and working capital loans.

Foreign currency indexed loans, are converted into TRY from the foreign currency rates as of the
opening date and followed in TRY accounts. Repayments are measured with the foreign currency
rates at the payment date, the foreign currency gains and losses are reflected to the statement of
income.

Provision is set for the loans that may be doubtful and the amount is charged in the current period
income statement as well as their classification to non-performing loans as per the related
regulations. The collections made related to loans including those on non-performing loans for
which provision is made in the current period are recorded in “Provision for Loans and Other
Receivables” and “Interest Received from Non-performing Loans” account.

Releases of loan loss provisions are recorded by reversing the provisions booked during the year
and the collections made related to loan losses previously accounted for are recorded to collections
related to the prior period expenses.

Explanations on Impairment of Financial Assets

At each balance sheet date, the Bank evaluates the carrying amounts of its financial asset or a group
of financial assets to determine whether there is an objective indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the Bank determines the related
impairment.

A financial asset or a financial asset group incurs impairment loss only if there is an objective
evidence related to the occurrence of one or more than one event (“loss event”) after the first
journalization of that asset; and such loss event (or events) causes, an impairment as a result of the
effect on the reliable estimate of the expected future cash flows of the related financial asset and
asset group. Irrespective of high probability the expected losses for future events are not journalized.
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TURKIYE SINAI KALKINMA BANKASI A.S.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE INTERIM PERIOD JANUARY 1, 2008 TO JUNE 30, 2008

{Amounts expressed in thousands of New Turkish Lira (TRY) unless otherwise stated.)

SECTION THREE (Cont’d)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

VIIL.

IX.

Offsetting of Financial Assets and Liabilities

Financial assets and liabilities are offset when the Bank has a legally enforceable right to set off,
and when the Bank has the intention of collecting or paying the net amount of related assets and
liabilities or when the Bank has the right to offset the assets and liabilities simultaneously.
Otherwise, there is not any offsetting transaction about financial assets and liabilities.

Explanations on Sales and Repurchase Agreements and Lending of Securities

Funds provided under repurchase agreements are accounted under “Funds Provided under
Repurchase Agreements-TRY” and “Funds Provided under Repurchase Agreements-FC”
accounts.

All of the repurchase agreements of the Bank are based on the short-term government bonds. In the
financial statements, the government bonds and treasury bills sold to customers under repurchase
agreements are classified under securities held for trading, available for sale and held to maturity
depending on the portfolio they are originally included in and are valued according to the valuation
principles of the related portfolios. The income and expenses from these transactions are reflected
to the interest income and interest expense accounts in the income statement.

Receivables from reverse repurchase agreements are recorded in “Receivables from Reverse
Repurchase Agreements” account in the balance sheet.

Explanations on Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations

Assets held for sale are measured at the lower of the assets’ carrying amount and fair value less
costs to sell. Held for sale assets are not amortized and presented separately in the financial
statements. In order to classify an asset as held for sale, only when the sale is highly probable,
experienced quite often and the asset (or disposal group) is available for immediate sale in its
present conditton. Management must be committed to the sale, which should be expected to
qualify for recognition as a completed sale. Highly saleable condition requires a plan by the
management regarding the sale of the asset to be disposed (or else the group of assets), together
with an active program for determination of buyers as well as for the completion of the plan. Also
the asset (or else the group of assets) shall be actively marketed in conformity with its fair value.
On the other hand, the sale is expected to be journalized as a completed sale within one year after
the classification date; and the necessary transactions and procedures to complete the plan should
demonstrate the fact that the possibility of making significant changes or canceling the plan is low.
Various circumstances and conditions could extend the completion period of the sale more than
one year. If such delay happened due to the circumstances and conditions beyond the control of the
Bank and if there is enough evidence that the sale plan of the related asset (or disposal group of
asset) of the Bank is still in process, the delay in the sales process does not prevent the
classification of the asset (or disposal group of asset) as an asset held for sale.

A discontinued operation is a division that is either disposed or held for sale. Results of
discontinued operations are included separately in the income statement.
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TURKIYE SINAi KALKINMA BANKASI A.S.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE INTERIM PERIOD JANUARY 1, 2008 TO JUNE 30, 2008

{Amounts expressed in thousands of New Turkish Lira (TRY) unless otherwise siated.)

SECTION THREE (Cont’d)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

X1.

XI1.

Explanations on Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

Goodwill arising on the acquisition of a subsidiary or a jointly controlled entity represents the
excess of the cost of acquisition over the Bank’s interest in the net fair value of the identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of the subsidiary or jointly controlled entity recognized
at the date of acquisition. Goodwill is initially recognized as an asset at cost and is subsequently
measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. For the purpose of impairment testing,
goodwill is allocated to each of the Bank’s cash-generating units expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination. Cash-generating units to which goodwill has been allocated are
tested for impairment annually, or more frequently when there is an indication that the unit may be
impaired. If the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less than the carrying amount of
the unit, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of the unit pro-rata on the basis of the carrying
amount of each asset in the unit. An impairment loss recognized for goodwill is not reversed in a
subsequent period. On disposal of a subsidiary or a jointly controlled entity, the attributable
amount of goodwill is included in the determination of the profit or loss on disposal.

The standalone financial statements of the Bank do not include goodwill as of the balance sheet
date.

Intangible assets that are acquired prior to January |, 2005 are carried at restated historical cost as
of December 31, 2004; and intangible assets that are acquired subsequent to January 1, 2005 are
carried at cost less accumulated amortization, and any impairment. Intangible assets are amortized
over their expected useful lives. Depreciation method and period are reviewed periodically at the
end of each year. Intangible assets are mainly composed of rights and they are amortized
principally on a straight-line basis over 5 years.

Explanations on Tangible Fixed Assets
The tangible fixed assets, purchased before January |, 2005, are accounted for at their restated
costs as of December 31, 2004 and the assets purchased in the following periods are accounted for

at acquisition cost less accumulated depreciation and reserve for impairment.

Gain or loss resulting from disposals of the tangible fixed assets is reflected to the income
statement as the difference between the net proceeds and net book value.

Normal maintenance and repair cost of the properties are expensed.
There is no pledge, mortgage or any other lien on tangible fixed assets.

Tangible fixed assets are depreciated with straight-line method and their useful lives are
determined in accordance with the Tax Procedural Law.
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TURKIYE SINAi KALKINMA BANKASI A.S.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE INTERIM PERIOD JANUARY 1, 2008 TO JUNE 30, 2008

{Amounts expressed in thousands of New Turkish Lira (TRY) unless otherwise stated.)

SECTION THREE (Cont’d)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

XTI1.

XIV.

XV.

Explanations on Leasing Transactions
The Bank as Lessor

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recorded as receivables at the amount of the
Bank’s net investment in the leases. The lease payments are allocated as principle and interest.
Finance lease income is allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of
return on the Bank’s net investment outstanding in respect of the leases.

The Bank as Lessce

Assets held under finance leases are recognized as assets of the Bank at their fair value at the
inception of the lease or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments. The
corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the balance sheet as a finance lease obligation.
Lease payments are apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the lease obligation so
as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges
are included in profit or loss in accordance with the Bank’s general policy on borrowing costs.
Tangible fixed assets acquired by financial leases are amortized based on the useful lives of the
assets.

Explanations on Provisions and Contingent Liabilities

Provisions are recognized when there is a present obligation due to a past event, it is probable that
an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are determined by using
the Bank’s best expectation of expenses in fulfilling the obligation, and discounted to present value
if material.

Explanations on Liabilities Regarding Employee Benefits

Under Turkish law and union agreements, lump sum payments are made to employees retiring or
involuntarily leaving the Bank. In retirement and involuntarily leaving, the Bank records the
present value of the defined benefit obligation.

There is no indemnity obligations related to the employees who are employed with contract of
limited duration exceeding 12 month period.

Employees of the Bank are members of “Tirkiye Sinai Kalkinma Bankasi Anonim Sirketi Memur
ve Miistahdemleri Yardim ve Emekli Vak{i” and “Tirkiye Sinai Kalkinma Bankasi A.S.
Mensuplari Munzam Sosyal Giivenlik ve Yardimlagma Vakfi” (“the Pension Fund”). Technical
financial statements of those funds are subject to audit in accordance with Article 38 of the
Insurance Audit Law and provisions of “Regulations on Actuaries” issued based on the related
Atrticle by an actuary registered in the Actuarial Registry.
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TURKIYE SINAiI KALKINMA BANKASI A.S.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE INTERIM PERIOD JANUARY 1, 2008 TO JUNE 30, 2008

(Amounts expressed in thousands of New Turkish Lira (TRY) unless otherwise stated.)

SECTION THREE (Cont’d)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

XV.

Explanations on Liabilities Regarding Employee Benefits (Cont’d)

Paragraph | of the provisional Article 23 of the Banking Act (“Banking Act”) No: 5411 published
in the Official Gazette No: 25983 on November I, 2005 requires the transfer of banking funds to
the Social Security Institution within 3 years as of the enactment date of the Banking Act. Under
the Banking Act, in order to account for obligations, actuarial calculations will be made
considering the income and expenses of those funds by a commission consisting of representatives
from various institutions. Such calculated obligation shall be settled in equal installments in
maximum 15 years. Nonetheless, the related Article of the Banking Law was withdrawn by the
Constitutional Court’s decision No: E. 2005/39 and K. 2007/33 dated March 22, 2007 that were
published in the Official Gazette No: 26479 on March 31, 2007 as of the release of the related
decision, the execution of this article was cancelled as of the publication of the decision and the
underlying reasoning for the cancellation of the related article was published in the Official Gazette
No: 2673 | on December 15, 2007

After the publication of the reasoning of the cancellation decision of the Constitutional Court,
articles related with the transfer of banks pension fund participants to Social Security Institution
based on Social Security Law numbered 5754 were accepted by the Grand National Assembly of
Turkey on April 17, 2008 and published in the Official Gazette No: 26870 on May 8, 2008.

Present value for the liabilities of the transferees as of the transfer date would be calculated by a
commission that involves representatives of Social Security Institution, Ministry of Finance,
Turkish Treasury, State Planning Organization, BRSA, SDIF, banks and banks’ pension fund
institutions. 1f salaries and benefits paid by the pension fund of banks and income and expenses of
the pension funds in respect of the insurance branches, stated in the Law, exceeds the salaries and
benefits paid under the regulations of Social Security Institution, such differences would be
considered while calculating the present value for the liabilities of the transferees.

Unmet social benefits and payments of the pension fund participants and other employees that
receive monthly income although they are within the scope of the related settlement deeds would
be met by pension funds and the institutions employ these participants after the transfer of pension
funds to the Social Security Institution.

By considering the laws expressed above about the transfer of pension funds; there is neither
technical nor actual deficit to require a provision for unpaid social benefits and payments of the
pension funds although they are belong to the related settlement deeds, according to the technical
balance sheet report on December 31, 2007 that is audited in the context of the third paragraph
stated above in accordance with TAS 19.

According to the technical balance sheet report audited by the actuary, there is neither technical nor
actual deficit requiring to provide any provision in accordance with the principles set out in the
Council of Minister’s Resolution No: 2006/1 1345 published in the Official Gazette No: 26377 on
December 15, 2006 for the purpose of identifying procedures and principles to apply transfer
requirements.

In addition, the Bank’s management anticipates that any liability that may come out during the
transfer period and after in the context expressed above, would be financed by the assets of the
Pension Fund and would not cause any extra burden on the Bank.

20



j

TURKIYE SINAI KALKINMA BANKASI A.S.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE INTERIM PERIOD JANUARY 1, 2008 TO JUNE 30, 2008

(Amounts expressed in thousands of New Turkish Lira (TRY) unless otherwise stated.)

SECTION THREE (Cont’d)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

XVI.

XVH.

Explanations on Taxation

The income tax charge is composed of the sum of current tax and deferred tax.

The current tax liability is calculated over taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from
profit as reported in the income statement because it excludes items of income or expense that are
taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Bank’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted
by the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax is recognized on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in
the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit,
and are accounted for using the balance sheet liability method. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognized for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognized for all
deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be
available against which those deductible temporary. differences can be utilized. Such assets and
liabilities are not recognized if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial
recognition of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor
the accounting profit.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date. Deferred tax is
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are mcasured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
period in which the liability is settled or the asset realized and reflected in the statement of income
as expense or income. Moreover, if the deferred tax is related with items directly recorded under
the equity in the same or different period, deferred tax is also associated directly with equity.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset.

The Bank has adjusted its statutory financial statements as per the inflation accounting as of
January 1, 2004 in accordance with the repeated article numbered 298 in Tax Procedural Law
numbered 213 which was changed by the Law No. 5024.

According to the second paragraph of the Article 53 of the Banking Act No 5411 dated October
19, 2005, all specific reserves for loans and other receivables are considered as deductible expensc
for determining corporate tax base.

Additional Explanations on Borrowings

The borrowing costs related to purchase, production, or construction of qualifying assets that
require significant time to be prepared for use and sale are included in the cost of assets until the
relevant assets become ready to be used or to be sold. Income obtained by temporary placement of

undisbursed investment loan in financial investments is offset against borrowing costs qualified for
capitalization.

All other borrowing costs are recorded to the income statement at the period they are incurred.
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TURKIYE SINAi KALKINMA BANKASI A.S.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE INTERIM PERIOD JANUARY 1, 2008 TO JUNE 30, 2008

(Amounts expressed in thousands of New Turkish Lira (TRY) unless otherwise stated.)

SECTION THREE (Cont’d)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

XVIIL. Explanations on Share Certificates

In the current period, the Bank’s share capital has increased by TRY 100.000 Thousand. TRY
84.000 Thousand of this increase, in respect of the resolution of the General Assembly, s
transferred from the profit of the year 2007 and TRY 16.000 Thousand from the share capital
inflation restatement adjustment. The increase in the paid capital is approved by the BRSA on
April 11, 2008 and by the resolution of the Capital Markets Board numbered 15/582 on May 23,
2008. The registration has been completed by T.C. istanbul Ticaret Sicili Memurlugu on May 30,
2008 and the increase has been recorded to the capital account.

In the prior period, in respect of the resolution of the General Assembly, the Bank has increased its
capital from TRY 300.000 Thousand to TRY 400.000 Thousand. TRY 50.000 Thousand of this
increase was transferred from the profit of the year 2006 and TRY 50.000 Thousand from the share
capital inflation restatement adjustment.

XIX. Explanations on Acceptances
Acceptances are realized simultaneously with the payment dates of the customers and they are
presented as commitments in the off-balance sheet accounts.

XX.  Explanations on Government Incentives
The Bank doesn’t use governiment incentives.

XX1. Explanations on Segment Reporting

In accordance with its mission, the Bank mainly operates in investment and corporate banking
segments.

Corporate Marketing Management operations are included in the corporate banking. The corporate
banking is serving financial solutions and banking services for its large-scale corporate customers.
Among the services given to corporate customers are; TRY and foreign exchange operating loans,
investment credits, project financing, letters of credit and letters of guarantees.

The activities of investment banking are; the operations of Treasury, Corporate Finance, Research,
Financial Institutions and Marketable Securities and Portfolio Management departments. Under the
investment banking activities, portfolio management for corporate and individual customers,
marketable securities intermediary activities, cash flow management and all types of corporate
finance services are provided.

The segmental allocation of the Bank’s net profit as of June 30, 2008 is shown below.

Corporate Investment Banking Other Total
NetInterestIncome 43577 59354 - 102,931
‘Net Commission and Fees Income 1007~ 939 (164 1.782 |
Other Income 4028 4924 26892 35844

Other Expense N (13475 (23888)  (14142) (51.503)
_Profit Before Tax ) Lo3s137 41329 12.586 _.85.052

Tax Provision , : (15.624)
Net Profit 73.428

XXII. Explanations on Other Matters

None, other than the above explanations.
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TURKIYE SINAI KALKINMA BANKASI A.S.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE INTERIM PERIOD JANUARY 1, 2008 TO JUNE 30, 2008

{Amounts expressed in thousands of New Turkish Lira (TRY) unless otherwise stated.)

SECTION FOUR

INFORMATION ON FINANCIAL STRUCTURE

I Explanations Related to the Capital Adequacy Standard Ratio

The capital adequacy ratio is 21,60 % as at June 30, 2008. Related to the calculation of the capital
adequacy ratio, the risk weighted assets, the commitments and non-cash loans are classified
according to the collateral groups and evaluated within the particular risk group.

Information related to the capital adequacy ratio: (Thousand TRY)

Risk Weight

Bank

_ o 0% 10% 20% 50% 100% 150% 200%
Amounts Subject to Credit Risk 1.568.977 . o 682616 583.067 2.292.497 - -
Balance Sheet items (Net) - o - - - - -
Cash 219 - - R - - -
Matured Marketable Securities - - - - - - -
Due From Central Bank of Turkey ~ ~3;;45 - - - - - -
Duc From Domestic Banks, Foreign = 7 B i
Banks. Branches and Head Office
Abroad - - 64.563 - - -
Interbank Money Market Placcmentswi o - - - - - _~
Receivables From Reverse Repo
Transactions _ B _ _ _
Reserve Deposits 45,2 |7 nnnnnnnn _~ - - - B
Loans 4.089 L S45440.  SS1339 1917272
Non-performing loans (Net) f - . o - . -
P e 7_8 _; o 5 o T i i
Available-For-Salc Financial Assets 1495347 - 15892 . 30680 . )
o lO_M_alun_l)h;veSl_m;mS_ D e ~ s e e
Receivables from Installment Sales of
Assels S = - - R A - z -
Sundry Debtors - - - 1.809 - -
Interest and Income Accruals (*) " T S . )
Subsidiaries, Associates and Entities . 7T o ‘ '
Under Common Control (Joint Vent.) !
N - - - 162683 -
Tangible Assets - - - 15797 - -
Other Assets . . - - 12.656 - _
O Bl [ R _,2_6_5_1072 o 3en —
- Guaréaiée;an;ja);mltmen1<~ ‘25%233 e ~ ass . yog .

Wb‘erivativc Financial lnstrumgﬁlnsw B _~ - - 67.588 o - ] B :
NoanskWeléi];é&Accounlq e : S i : : - _
Total Risk Weighted Assets 3.865.210 - 887688 623.712 | 2.394.880 - -

(*) Interest and income accruals are included in related accounts.

Summary information related to the capital adequacy ratio:
. .....Current Period Prior Period

Total Risk Weighted Assets (TRWA) 7884274 2474 475
Amount Subject to Market Risk (ASMR) 388,400 177,775
Amount Subject to (nii)n.érational Risk (A‘SO~R~) ‘ 280.666 2g344|
Shareholders” Equity o R 767.516 797430
Shareholders™ Equity / (TRWA + ASMR + ASOR) *100 i 2160 2744 |
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TURKIYE SINAI KALKINMA BANKASI A.S.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE INTERIM PERIOD JANUARY 1, 2008 TO JUNE 30, 2008

(Amounts expressed in thousands of New Turkish Lira (TRY) unless otherwise stated.)

SECTION FOUR (Cont’d)

INFORMATION ON FINANCIAL STRUCTURE (Cont’d)
L Explanations Related to the Capital Adequacy Standard Ratio (Cont’d)

Information related to the components of shareholders' equity:

30.06.2008 31.12.2007 B
(‘()RE CA[’[TAL— ........................................................... - - ﬁ_ .............. .
Paid-in Capltal 500.000 400.000

Nommal capnal e e s e oo 4 06,000

Capnal commnmems( ) S S SO : e e .,_..__...._.m.v,__—_s
iation adiustment to share car—mal e B 3 - S _|6374—
vSHé?éBEHﬁGH{ __________________________________ . i i
Share cancellation profits . B —W_ﬂ
eaal reserves e e e e e et e pages -

o ?];Q{ |Cga|l‘Cng\’C—(TL—l}|\ISh Commerual Codc 466/ 1) ’ 22235
a Second legal reserve (Turklsh Commercml Code 466/2) : 2(;34(,

Other legal reserve per speual Icglslauon - — -
Slammr} resé;\—/ég ..... e e et e e e 1_486|
R —— e S o - 91840

Reserves allocaled by lhc General Assembly S ) 99 779 88—920
_______ Retaméd eammgs N 020 Y020

Accumulated osser e e e 4_ _______________________________________________ i S

) Forelgn currency sharc capllal exchange dlffercnces . o _ o -
Inﬁatlon adluslmcm on Icgal reserves, statutory reserves and S )
thraordmary reserves -
Pmn e o e s i 2 ot e . |4 743 |

Curre;1 [;u;og})mﬁ B - - B R A

Prior years’ it e et i et -

- B . 6.808
(Gains on 1 sale 01 associates and SUbSIdIdI‘ICS and propcrues tobe
addcd to capnal ) - - B i -
Primary subordmaled Ioans up o 15% ot the Core (apltal - -
Losses thal cannot be covered by reserves ( ) -

Ne1 cu—rre:,{—l;;od‘]—(;s: e e e e i e — i
LeaSChO'd 'mpmveme"ls( R SO
Prepaidexpenses () L (o0 @6y
Intangibleassets (-) (319) B2
Deferred tax asset exceedmg 10% ofthe  Core Capndl ) o - -
Excess amount as per the Article 56, Clause 3 of the Banking Law (- ) e o -
Total Core Capital 778.282 702.802
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SECTION FOUR (Cont’d)

INFORMATION ON FINANCIAL STRUCTURE (Cont’d)
I. Explanations Related to the Capital Adequacy Standard Ratio (Cont’d)

Information related to the components of shareholders' equity (Cont’d):

31

SUPPLEMENTARY CAPITAL

~30.06.2008

General Loan Loss Provisions

5% of the revaluation reserve for movable fixed asscts
45% of the of revaluation reserve for properties

Bonus shares obtained from associates, subsidiaries and entities under common control (joint
fventures) i

Primary subordinated loans excluded in the calculatlon oflhe Core Capltal

Secondary subordinated loans L6125t
Marketable securities value increasefund (94.078): 17593
Associates and subsidiaries i S (30.381)  13.838
__Available for sale securities N (63.697) 3955
lndexauon differences for capital reserves, proi'l reserves and retamed eammgs (Except
lindexation differences for legal reserves. Statutory reserves and extraordinary reserves) ; - -
Total Supplementary Capital . - 19:333)
TIER HI CAPITAL - et ot e e o o e
CAPITAL r e s gt v e 1 e B T TS SIS Rp OO - 768'949 797.99 l
DEDUCTIONS FROM THE CAPITAL e (433 (36l
Sharceholdings of banks and financial institutions ([)omesllc Forelgn) from which the
Bank keeps ten percent or more of capitals o o - -
Shareholdings of unconsolidated banks and financial institutions (Domcsllc Forelgn)
from which the Bank keeps less than ten percent of capitals which exceed the ten pcrccnl
of Bank’s Core and Supplementary Capital B L - -
Secondary subordinated loans granted to Banks and Fmancnal lnsmullons (Domesuc
Foreign) or Qualified Shareholders and placements in securities of these entities thal
possess the nature ofthelr Prlmary or Secondar} ‘Subordmaled Debt : . .
Loans gramed belng non-compllant mlh thc Amcles 50 and SI ofthc Banl\ma Law - -
The net book value ofpropemes exceedmg fﬁy pcrcent ofequny and properties held for
sale and properties and commodity to be disposed, acquired in exchange of loans and
receivables according to the Article 57 of the Banking Law and have not been disposed
yelafter S yearsafter foreclosure i (433 (s6l)
.Other 44 Mn ne e e R e e e e R e e 4 e itass 1t @ eame o e B Tk S T g re— — - o PR s
TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY 767.516 - 797.430
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1 UKKIYE DINAI KALKINMA BANKASI ALY,
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE INTERIM PERIOD JANUARY 1, 2008 TO JUNE 30, 2008

(Amounts expressed in thousands of New Turkish Lira (TRY) unless otherwise stated.)

SECTION FOUR (Cont’d)

INFORMATION ON FINANCIAL STRUCTURE (Cont’(-i)

1L

Explanations Related to Market Risk

In order to avoid the market risk and restrict the risks carried, the Board of Directors determines
the limits on market risk. Risk, nominal and proportional limitation systems are used and the
related reports are presented to Board of Directors, relevant committees and top management.

The guidelines prepared by Risk Management Group that is composed of Risk Management
Directorate and Risk Management Committee regarding organization, responsibility and
operations are approved by the Board of Directors. Risk management policies are determined and
announced throughout the Bank.

The standard method is used to calculate the consolidated and unconsolidated market risk. In
addition to the standard method, the Bank applies parametric and historical simulation models to
securities portfolio, foreign currency position on a daily or monthly basis to detect the market risks.
The success of these models is tested retrospectively. The Bank also makes VaR calculations,
scenario analyses and stress tests to detect the risks not caught by using internal models. Market
risk is measured on a daily basis and reported to top management, Audit Committee and Board of
Directors weekly and monthly.

a) Information related to the market risk

The market risk table is as follows:

Amount
I) Capital Requirement to be Employed For General Market Risk - Standard Method 25.741
Resulting From Financial Instruments related to Interest Income 25263
Resulting From Positions in Share Certificates, Investment Fund and Participation Certificates 478
11) Capital Requirement to be Employed For Specific Risk - Standard Method 2.776
Resulting From Financial Instruments related to Interest Income 2.298
Resulting From Positions in Share Certificates, Investment Fund and Participation Certificates 478
111) Capital Requirement to be Employed For Currency Risk - Standard Method 2.355
Capital Requirement 2.502
Capital Requirement Calculated for Options Subject to Foreign Currency Risk 53
1V) Capital Requirement to be Employed For Commodity Risk - Standard Method
V) Capital Requirement to be Employed For Settlement Risk - Standard Method -
V1) Total Capital Requirement to be Employed For Market Risk Resulting From Options - Standard
Method -
VII) Total Capital Requirement to be Employed For Market Risk in Banks Using Risk Measurement
Model i
VII1) Total Capital Requirement to be Employed For Market Risk (I+1I+11I+1V+V+VI) 31.072
K1X) Amount Subject to Market Risk (12.5 x VIII) or (12,5 x VII) 388.400
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE INTERIM PERIOD JANUARY 1, 2008 TO JUNE 30, 2008

{Amounts expressed in thousands of New Turkish Lira (TRY) unless otherwise stated.)

SECTION FOUR (Cont’d)

INFORMATION ON FINANCIAL STRUCTURE (Cont’d)

II1.

IV.

Explanations Related to Operational Risk

The Bank uses “Basic Indicator Method” in its operational risk calculation. The base amount for
operational risk is measured by using the last three years, 2007, 2006 and 2005, of the Bank’s gross
profit according to the 4th section of the “Measurement of the Base Amount of Operational Risk”
being effective on June 1, 2007, of the “Regulation on Measurement and Assessment of Capital
Adequacy of Banks” issued on the Official Gazette dated November 1, 2006, numbered 26233.

Explanations Related to Currency Risk

No long or short position is taken due to the uncertainties and changes in the markets therefore; no
exposure to foreign currency risk is expected. However, possible foreign currency risks are
calculated on a weekly and monthly basis under the standard method in the foreign currency risk
table and their results are reported to the official authorities and the Bank’s top management. Thus,
foreign currency risk is closely monitored. Foreign currency risk, as a part of general market risk, is
also taken into consideration in the calculation of Capital Adequacy Standard Ratio.

No short position is taken regarding foreign currency risk, whereas, counter position is taken for
any foreign currency risks arising from customer transactions as to avoid foreign currency risk.

The Bank has no foreign currency and net foreign investment hedging transactions through
derivative instruments.

Announced current foreign exchange buying rates of the Bank as at the balance sheet date and the
previous five working days in USD, EURO and YEN are as follows:

1 US Dollar| 1 EURO YEN
A. Bank “Foreign Exchange Valuation Rate”
June 30, 2008 1,2225 1,9301 0,011530
Prior Five Workdays:
June 27, 2008 1,2200 1,9189 0.011386
June 26, 2008 1,2100 1,8963 0.011209
June 25, 2008 1,2240 1,9060 0,011352
June 24, 2008 1,2280 1,9070 0,011368
June 23, 2008 1,2200 1,9034 0011354

Simple arithmetic thirty-day averages of the USD, EURO and YEN buying rates of the Bank before
the balance sheet date are TRY 1,2307, TRY 1,9149 and TRY 0,0115 10; respectively.
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LUK Y E DLNAL RALNDIINIYIA DAIYIZADL ALD.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE INTERIM PERIOD JANUARY 1,2008 TO JUNE 30, 2008

(Amounts expressed in thousands of New Turkish Lira (TRY) unless otherwise stated.)

SECTION FOUR (Cont’d)

INFORMATION ON FINANCIAL S TRUCTURE (Cont’d)

IV. Explanations Related to Currency Risk (Cont’d)

Information on the Bank’s foreign currency risk: Foreign Currencies (TRY Thousand)

EURO

Ush

Yen

Other FC Total

Current Period

Assets

Cash (Cash in Vault, Foreign Currency
Cash, Money in Transit,

_.Central Bank of Turkey.

Checks Purchased) and Balances with the

90

Banks

6.103

“Financial Assets at Fair Value Through
Profit and Loss

12.090 °

13324

y Market Placements

) A\ allbz;ble "‘For Sal_é lill'lanC_I“a! As
Loans (*) —————

62484 1

339.992

1618212

SubS|d|anes Associates and Entities

34572

1316957 49719 - 2984888

Llﬁbllllle\

Bdnl\ Dcposm
v_vl‘ore!gn Currency Depe
oney Market Borrowing:
“Funds Provided From Other TFinancial
_Institutions

_ Marketable Secun

_ Sundry Creditors_

_Hedging Purposes

1.969.025

Derivative Financial Liabilities for T

_Under Common Control (Joint Vent,) - o an - T
Held-To-Maturity Investments - - - - -
“Derivative Financial Assets for Hedging T R . )
Purposes - I
_Tangible Assets . - - B} e
CIntangible Assets Lo e -
Other Assets(**) 189.628 81.996 6.201 4 277.829
Total Assets 1.888.607 | 1.790.480] 56.041 670 3.735.798

3.610.797

5 672

_Financial Derivative Liabilities
Non Cash  Loans

(24.845)

9371

(1.039.105)

373.795

. Flnanudl Denvallve Llabllltlb(:bm
“Non-Cash Loans (****)

186266
(94447

wPrml: i—)él‘l:ﬂd o B B ) i
CTodAssets b 536048 : 1. 558 007
> (86 489) : 44 289

91.819

- 1.304.002
357, 404)

61.405

341.483;

_(188.939)

(53402)

Other Liabilities (***) 12.662 18.661 : 23
Total Liabilitics 2.007.964 l.7lOA739 69.092 53 3.787.848
Net Balance Sheet Position (119.357) 79 741 617 (52.050)
. (118388) 1336l 226 42632
_ Financial Derivative Assets ' 572.27 920. 7I7 202300, 2_4_17 l 697 712

67 107
73 005
(12 903)

@191

4007  3.156.557

9719

6 3211266
304 (54709

51750 , 1.542.464
_(_6 1529) (469)  (1.513.849)
- 12.499 415387

(*) Loans extended. include TRY 1.232.626 Thousand foreign currency indexed loans.
(**) TRY 2.003 Thousand prepaid expenses have not been included to other assets.

(***)TRY (31.921) Thousand marketable securities valuc increase fund have not been presented in others liabilities.
(*¥***) Has no effect on net off-balance sheet position.
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FUKKILIY E DINAL KALKINMA BANKADI ALS.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE INTERIM PERIOD JANUARY 1, 2008 TO JUNE 30, 2008

(Amounts expressed in thousands of New Turkish Lira (TRY) unless otherwise stated.)

SECTION FOUR (Cont’d)

INFORMATION ON FINANCIAL STRUCTURE (Cont’d)

V.

Explanations Related to Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate sensitivity of the assets, liabilities and off-balance sheet items are measured by the
Bank. General and specific interest rate risk tables in the standard method, by including assets and
liabilities, are taken into account in determination of Capital Adequacy Standard Ratio and to
calculate the overall interest rate risk of the Bank.

Forecast results which have been formed using estimation-simulation reports are prepared and then
the effects of fluctuations in interest rates are evaluated with sensitivity and scenario analyzes.
Cash requirement for every maturity period are determined based on maturity distribution analysis
(Gap). In addition, a positive spread between the yield on assets and the cost of liabilities is kept
while determining interest rates.

The amount of local borrowings is very low considering the total liabilities of the Bank. As the
Bank is a development and investment bank, it obtains most of the funding from abroad.

The fluctuations in interest rates are controlled with interest rate risk tables, gap analysis, scenario
analysis and stress tests, its effect in assets and liabilities and the probable changes in cash flows
are being screened. The Bank screens many risk control ratios including the markets risk ratio to
the sum of risk weighted assets and the ratio of the value at risk calculated as per the internal
model to the equity.

Under the scope of risk policies, continuous controls are made to prevent assets or shareholders’

equity from adverse effects because of fluctuations in interest rates or liquidity difficulties and
upper management, Board of Directors and Audit Committee are informed of these risks.
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LUIKDI T £ D1INAT RALRKINIVIA DAINKADI ALD.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE INTERIM PERIOD JANUARY 1, 2008 TO JUNE 30, 2008

{Amounts expressed in thousands of New Turkish Lira (TRY) unless otherwise stated.)

SECTION FOUR (Cont’d)

INFORMATION ON FINANCIAL STRUCTURE (Cont’d)

V. Explanations Related to Interest Rate Risk (Cont’d)

Information related to the interest rate sensitivity of assets, liabilities and off-balance sheet
items (based on repricing dates): :

__Sundry Creditors

Marketable Securities Issued

! 5 Year Non-
. Upto 1 -3 3-12 -5 .
Current Period Month Months Months Years and nterest Total
______ - Over  bearing* |

Assets

Cash (Cash in Vault, Foreign Currency

Cash, Money in Transit, Checks

Purchased) and Balances with the

Central Bank of Turkey. - - 4.064 . 4.064 |

Banks 9.813 2.090 8.004 44.656 64.563

Financial Assets at Fair Value Through

Profit and Loss 10.229 1.404 29.734 1.000 : 1360 0 537 44.264

Money Market Placements e - -

Available-For-Sale Financial Assets 159.357 434810 i 133.514 = 548.790 ' 21.372 1.550.919

Loans 911.874 | 1.167.230 © 737.597  171.364 3.018.140

Held-To-Maturity Investments - o DS S -

Other Assets 2.507 125.069 89.861 ° 22996 252.488 | 494.125
Total Assets 1.093.780 | 1.730.603 = 998.710  744.150 = 285715 323.117 | 5.176.075
Liabilities
.......... Bank Deposits e Db e Do o

Other Deposits RS B R I

Money Market Borrowings | 627.678 ¢ 82.419 - - - 710097

" Funds Provided From Other Financial :

959925 124.850

Off-Balance Sheet Short Position

- (464.133) M(mlnl8)§

_Institutions 1,085,540 1.465.810 o
Other Liabilities 7.711 4495 25120 7439 1360 724962 771087
Total Liabilities 1720929 | 1552724 985.045 132.289 38264  746.824 5.176.075
Balance Sheet Long Position | 177879 13.665 611861 247451 - 1050856
Balance Sheet Short Position __ (627.149) S | - (423.707) (1.050.856)
Off-Balance Sheet Long Position o 2.624 220 3940 - 6784

- (464.253)

Total Position

| (624.525)

178.099 (450.470) 611.743 251391 (423.707)

(437.469)

(*) Amounts in other assets and shareholders™ equity are presented in non-interest bearing column. in order to reconcile the total

assets and liabilities on the balance sheet.
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SECTION FOUR (Cont’d)

INFORMATION ON FINANCIAL STRUCTURE (Cont’d) )

V. Explanations Related to Interest Rate Risk (Cont’d)

Average interest rates applied to monetary financial instruments: %
EURO ’ UsD Yen TRY
Current Period o B :

Assets - : ) ) i
Cash (Cash in Vault, Foreign Currency Cash, Money:
in Transit, Checks Purchased) and Balances with th : .

.. Central Bank of Turkey e e 100 - :
Banks 420 3,00 - 18,59
Financiz;l assels‘ z;ltalr value through profit and loss - - ’ - - _ ~f~—-~—~~lo;~l~é——

..... Money Market Placements e - - e e e e s s et e
___Available-For-Sale Financial Assets 5,12 : ' - 17.49
Loans .. , AL 5.86 4.87 18.44
Held-To-Maturity Investments e - i e 2 -
_ BankDeposits S I :

,,,,,, Other Deposits I [ -
Money Market Borrowings i ' 234 - 19,50

..Sundry ereditors - T T
Funds Provided From Other Financial Institutions 496 3.96 1,96 16,00
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FTUKRKIY EDINAL KALKINVIA BDANBADI AD.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE INTERIM PERIOD JANUARY 1, 2008 TO JUNE 30, 2008

(Amounts expressed in thousands of New Turkish Lira (TRY) unless otherwise stated.)

SECTION FOUR (Cont’d)

INFORMATION ON FINANCIAL STRUCTURE (Cont’d)

V. Explanations Related to Interest Rate Risk (Cont’d)

Information related to the interest rate sensitivity of assets, liabilities and off-balance sheet
" items of prior period (based on repricing dates):

S Year Non-
Prior Period Uptol 1-3 3-12 1-5 and interest
Month Months | Months Years Over bearing(*) Total
Assets
Cash (Cash in Vault, Foreign T ‘
Currency Cash, Money in Transit,
Checks Purchased) and Balances
_________ with the Central Bank of Turkey. - ) - - - 3.367 3.367
Banks 10.858 17386 28444
Financial Assets at Fair Value
_Through Profit and Loss 4350 0 11347 54.371 - 525 81.630
vvvvv Money Market Placements | IS SRR N | L . S SR
Available-For-Sale Financial Assct§_iw 249.03{_{:_,”394782 . 168.728 . ~ 690.657 143.008 21.744 1.667.953

. Loans

817256

933217 | 639.626 15

Held-To-Maturity lnveslmcnt._s‘w”m_m__:

Ao -

_.2:554.272

Other Deposits

Sundry Creditors

Funds Provided From Other
__Financial Institutions

Marketable Securities Issued .

835359 1.139.047

Other Liabilities

3743 9611 14481 17718

964.849 201512

Other Assets 13.880 117.568 87.136 22.688 | - 306.531 547.803
Total Assets 1095378 1.456.914 906.527 @ 926978 147.919 : 349.753  4.883.469
. Bank Deposits - e - - -

T S 834,088
..20.653

34039 - 3174906
- 808.269  853.822

Total Liabilities

L 1.656.151 1 1.148.658

996369 219.230 -

34139 828922 4.883.469

Balance Sheet Long Position - 707748 113780 - 1129784
Balance Sheet Short Position ...(560.773) - - (479.169)  (1.129.784)
Off-Balance Sheet Lo_ng Position e 8 ” 40()3 e e e+ e e e __ 4.874
Off-Balance Sheet Short Position . - (25776) | (421.193) g - (446.969)
Total Position (550.962) 312319 (115.618) | 286.555  113.780 . (479.169)  (442.093)

(*) Amounts in other assets and sharcholders’ equity are presented in non-interest bearing column, in order to reconcile the total

assets and liabilities on the balance sheet.
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TURKIYE SINAT KALKINMA BANKASI A.S.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE INTERIM PERIOD JANUARY 1, 2008 TO JUNE 30, 2008

(Amounts expressed in thousands of New Turkish Lira (TRY) unless otherwise stated.)

SECTION FOUR (Cont’d)

INFORMATION ON FINANCIAL STRUCTURE (Cont’d)

V. Explanations Related to Interest Rate Risk (Cont’d)

Average interest rates applied to monetary financial instruments in prior period: %

EURO

USD

Yen

Prior Period

IAssets

Cash (Cash in Vault, Foreién Cunené“}';"bash. :

Money in Transit, Checks Purchased) and
Balances with the Central Bank of Turkey

Banks

Financial assets at fair value through profit
and loss

Money Market Placements

Available-For-Sale Financial Assels_~

~_Loans

_Held-To-Maturity Investments
Liabilities
Bank Deposits
Other Deposits

Money Market Bﬂorrowings
Sundry creditors

Marketable Securities Issued

Funds Provided From Other Financial

Institutions
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TURKIYE SINAI KALKINMA BANKASI AS.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE INTERIM PERIOD JANUARY 1, 2008 TO JUNE 30, 2008

(Amounts expressed in thousands of New Turkish Lira (TRY) unless otherwise stated.)

SECTION FOUR (Cont’d)

INFORMATION ON FINANCIAL STRUCTURE (Cont’d)

VL

Explanations Related to Liquidity Risk

The Bank’s future cash flows and current positions are taken into consideration for managing the
market and liquidity risks. The Bank does not invest into illiquid markets and instruments. The
liquidity ratios are followed up and the maturity match and the coverage of liquidity need is
targeted in the context of asset-liability management.

Although the Bank started to perform tests to calculate liquidity risk with internal models, the risk
is still followed up basically by adapting the risks to “holding period™ data.

For the purpose of meeting the liquidity requirement, the Bank chooses one of the three or more of
the following; disposing liquid assets, increasing short-term borrowing, decreasing illiquid assets
or increasing capital. The Bank’s liquidity management is implemented by meeting all the
obligations on time considering the Bank’s reputation. The cash flow projections and the fund
requirement predictions are made by using adverse scenarios to determine liquidity risk under
urgent and unexpected circumstances.

As seen on interest rate risk tables, the difference in interest rates of assets and liabilities is in favor
of the assets. Such mismatch positively affects the profitability and is checked by the Bank
Management with regular reports.

The Bank meets its short term liquidity requirements with repurchase agreements and inter-bank
money market operations. The Bank may also use its available for sale portfolio for urgent
liquidity requirement. The Bank meets its long term liquidity needs from the international
institutions through borrowings.
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LURAINT R 25 ONVAL NNALNEIVIVEA DAIVINADR A.Q.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE INTERIM PERIOD JANUARY 1, 2008 TO JUNE 30, 2008

(Amounts expressed in thousands of New Turkish Lira (TRY) unless otherwise stated.)

SECTION FOUR (Cont’d)

INFORMATION ON FINANCIAL STRUCTURE (Cont’d)

V1. Explanations Related to Liquidity Risk (Cont’d)
Presentation of assets and liabilities according to their remaining maturities:
Uptol I-3 3-12 1-5 5 Year |Undistributed
Demand Month Months Months Years and Over (*) Total
Current Period : )

Assets ]

Cash (Cash in Vault,

Foreign Currency Cash,

Money in Transit. Checks :

Purchased) and Balances |

with the Central Bank of : ; ;

B Turkey L 4.064: - - - - - 4.064
Banks 4465 9813 2.090 8.004: 4 - 64563
Financial Assets at Fair 1
Value Through Profit and ° ‘

. Loss . .537 10229 1.404 29.734 1.000.  1.360 o 44264
Money Market Placements’ ' e . . y I - z
Financial Assets : ?

Available-For-Sale 2748 120996 256 37871  847.004 523420  18.624 1550919
Loans o 110872 93559 427488 71.905 o T1.3:018.140
Held-To-Maturity :

. Investments B el SR AR OO R .
Other Assets . 2598 23198 55522 150925 9394 252.488.  494.125
Total Assets 52.005 254.508 120.507 558.619( 2.913.245] 1.006.079 271.112] 5.176.075

BankDeposits - . > - ) T

__Other Deposits - ~ . b T
Funds Provided From '

Other Financial ; : : ' ‘ 5

Institutions 195507 62306 680930 1.170.410- 1563876 - 3.673.029
Money Market :

. Borrowings o 627678, 82419 - S S S - 0. 710.097
Marketable Securities : : f

VAssued - - i S W LI "
Sundry Creditors } e T e e T Tt = 21862 21.862
Other Liabilities - 7711 4495 25644 6.915 1.360. 724.962°  771.087
Total Liabilities - 830.896  149.220 706574 1.177.325 1565236  746.824 5.176.075

Liquidity Gap 52005 (576.388) (28.713). (147.955) 1.735.920. (359.157)  (475.712) -

. PriorPeriod | S T

. TotalAssets - 24481 49491, 152,908 782623 2.749.592. 799.102  325.272 4.883.469

Total Liabilities - 879.1395 87.450’ 657.236: 1.073.966: 1.356.759: 828.919_: 4.883.469

Liquidity Gap 24481 (829.648) 65458 125387 1675626 (557.657)  (503.647) -

(*)Other asset and liability balances, which are necessary and cannot be converted into cash in the near future for the Bank’s
ongoing activilies, such as tangible assets, investments in subsidiaries and associates, office supply inventory, prepaid expenses
and non-performing loans are classified under undistributed.
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TURKIYE SINAI KALKINMA BANKASI A.S.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE INTERIM PERIOD JANUARY 1, 2008 TO JUNE 30, 2008

(Amounts expressed in thousands of New Turkish Lira (TRY) unless otherwise stated.)

SECTION FIVE
EXPLANATIONS AND DISCLOSURES ON UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Cont’d)
I. Explanations Related to the Assets
l.a Information on cash and balances with the Central Bank of Turkey:
Current Period Prior Period
- ; TRY PC_ wY . FC
__Cash in TRY/Foreign Currency o 76 143 . us, 14
Balances with the Central Bank of Turkey: 255 3.590 - o 98 L 3.037
Qther : - - - -
Total 331 3.733 216 3.151
1.b Information related to the account of the Central Bank of Turkey:
Current Period Prior Period
e ; . TRY AT TRY LS T—
_Unrestricted demand deposits . 255 ¢ 3.590 . . 98 3037
Unrestricted time deposits I - . T et
Restricted time deposits - - - -
Total 255 3.590 98 . 3.037
2.a Information on financial assets at fair value through profit and loss:
2.a.1 Trading securities
2.a.1.a Trading securities given as collateral or blocked
As of the balance sheet date, the Bank has no trading securities given as collateral or blocked.
(December 31, 2007: None).
2.a.1.b Trading securities subject to repurchase agreements
As of the balance sheet date, the Bank has no trading securities subject to repurchase agreements
(December 31, 2007: None).
2.2.2 Information on financial assets designated as at fair value through profit and loss
2.2.2.a Information on financial assets designated as at fair value through profit and loss given as
collateral or blocked
As of the balance sheet date, the Bank has no financial assets designated at fair value through
profit and loss given as collateral or blocked (December 31, 2007: None).
2.2.2.b Financial assets designated as at fair value through profit and loss subject to repurchase

agreements

As of the balance sheet date, the Bank has no financial assets designated as at fair value through
profit and loss subject to repurchase agreements (December 31, 2007: None).
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1 UKKIYE SINAT KALKINMA BANKASI A.S.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE INTERIM PERIOD JANUARY 1, 2008 TO JUNE 30, 2008

f (Amounts expressed in thousands of New Turkish Lira (TRY) unless otherwise stated.)
- SECTION FIVE (Cont’d)
] EXPLANATIONS AND DISCLOSURES ON UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Cont’d)
]
I Explanations Related to the Assets (Cont’d)
.
3 2.b Positive differences table related to derivative financial assets held-for-trading:
’ g Held for trading financial derivative instruments ot Current{Perlod . F_C S Prlor Perio_q.,,...,...‘.“..
Swap Transactlons o ) _ 4.775
} __Futures Transactions § N - -
| i e - 20.601
- 38 - -
E 13.272 25414 . 17.405 14.061

Prior Period
| ... TRY - FC
23 3081 16490 1385

E | Foreign SRS U L T )

7 Branches and head offcc abroad : - - - -
B Total 23.111 41.452 16.490 11.954

Domestic

1 4. Information on Financial Assets Available-For-Sale

4.a.1 Financial assets available-for-sale subject to repurchase agreements:

Current Period Prior Period

easur) bI"S S
Other pubh(. sector debt securities
~ Bank bonds and bank guarameed bondq ’ )

Tl

\ " Asset backed securmes - ;

ot ; e e T
Total 636.276 143.744 880.683 71.072
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE INTERIM PERIOD JANUARY 1, 2008 TO JUNE 30,2008

(Amounts expressed in thousands of New Turkish Lira (TRY) unless otherwise stated.)

SECTION FIVE (Cont’d)

EXPLANATIONS AND DISCLOSURES ON UNCONS

(Cont’d)

I Explanations Related to the Assets {Cont’d)

4. Information on Financial Assets Available-For-Sale (Cont’d)

4.a.2

OLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Information on financial assets available-for-sale given as collateral or blocked

All financial assets available for sale given as collateral comprise of financial assets issued by the

Turkish Treasury. The carrying value of those assets is TRY 332.402 Thou

2007: TRY 272.455 Thousand).

sand (December 31,

_...CurrentPeriod . Prior Period

- TRY | N TRY = FC___|

Share certificates i, o -
Boria:i"réasury bill and similar investment B - B ) ]
... Securities 178269 . 154133 162.054 ©  110.401

Other o - - -

Total 178.269 154.133 162.054 : 110.401

4.b Major types of available for sale financial assets

Available for sale financial assets comprise 76,20% government bonds, 18,25% Eurobonds, and

5,55% shares and other securities.

Financial and non-financial investments, to which the Bank has invested between 0.15% to 5% are

classified in available-for-sale financial assets.

4.b.1

Information on financial assets available for sale portfolio

Current Period Prior Period
.. .Quoted on a stock exchange i} 1418166
... Not quoted IR R _..232.544
Share certificates _27.015

... Quoted on a stock exchange 3.388
. Notquoted ~ . 23.627)
Impairment provision(-) i} . (12.778)
Other : 3.006
Total 1.550.919 1.667.953

All unquoted available for sale equities are recorded at fair value except for the Bank’s investment
of TRY 15.938 Thousand which is recorded at cost since its fair value cannot be reliably estimated.
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FUND X L JUYAL RALRKINIVEA DAINDASE ALD.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE INTERIM PERIOD JANUARY 1, 2008 TO JUNE 30, 2008

(Amounts expressed in thousands of New Turkish Lira (TRY) unless otherwise stated.)

SECTION FIVE (Cont’d)

EXPLANATIONS AND DISCLOSURES ON UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Cont’d)

1. Explanations Related to the Assets (Cont’d)
5. Information on Loans:
S.a Information on all types of loans and advances given to shareholders and employees of the
Bank
» Current Period Prior Period
Cash Loans ;Non-Cash Loans: Cash Loans Non-Cash Loans
Direct loans granted to shareholders 73,017 24347 74.512 24.347
Corporate sharcholders ) 73.017 24347 74.512 24.347 |
Real person shareholders - - - -
Indirect loans granted to shareholders - - - - -
Loans granted to employees 153 - 174 -
Total 73.170 24.347 74.686 24.347
5.b Information on the first and second group loans and other receivables including restructured

or rescheduled loans

Standard Loans and Loans and Other Receivables
. Other Receivables Under Close Monitoring

h n i : : i
Cash Loans - Loans and Other ;| Restructured or ¢ Loans and Other : Restructured or

Receivables i Rescheduled . Receivables ¢ Rescheduled

Non-specialized loans .

_Discountnotes s DR § " ]
LExportloans - - ,
_Investmentloans o he84930. T

_Loans given (o financial sector . 813.847. - -
Foreignloans o s6 A
Other SI35200 el e
[Other receivables - - - -
Total 3.018.140 - .
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LURD L L OUYAL RALMULYIVIA DAINDADL ALD.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE INTERIM PERIOD JANUARY 1, 2008 TO JUNE 30, 2008
{Amounts expressed in thousands of New Turkish Lira (TRY) unless otherwise stated. )

SECTION FIVE (Cont’d)

EXPLANATIONS AND DISCLOSURES ON UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Cont’d)

I Explanations Related to the Assets (Cont’d)

5. Information on Loans (Cont’d):

S.c Information on consumer loans, individual credit cards, personnel loans and credit
cards given to personnel

S . ShoTerm | Mediumand Long Term Total

Consumer Loans-TRY e S T

| HousingLoans |

_CarLoans -

 Other
Consumer Loans Indcxed lo F(,

_ Housing Loans B

Consumer Loans FC L
HOUS‘"g Loa"S e

|nd1v1dua| CrcdllCardS TRY

Wllh Installmems

Inrilvwlc"i‘uail C redll Cards FC ‘

Personnel Loans-TRY
» Housmg Loans »
. Car Loans e
. General Purposc Loans I [ S
) othar e e

Personnel Loans |ndc>¢d [0 er... e S

Housmg V'Lo"ans

mCar Loans )
| General Pumpose Loans

Personn-el I,oans-FC

Housmg Loans B
o Loans o
: Ge"neral Purpose Loan\ S
01her B o
Pewrwsonm,l éredrn Cards TRY o

Wlthoul In

Personnel Credit Cards-FC
Wlthmlnslallwmwt‘:nts )

“ Wuhoul Inslallmenls

()vcrdrah Accounts- TRY (Rcal Persons)

Overdraft Accounts FC (Real Persons) o e : ;

Total : 107 46 153
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE INTERIM PERIOD JANUARY 1, 2008 TO JUNE 30, 2008

(Amounts expressed in thousands of New Turkish Lira (TRY) unless otherwise stated.)

SECTION FIVE (Cont’d)

EXPLANATIONS AND DISCLOSURES ON UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Cont’d)

L. Explanations Related to the Assets (Cont’d)
5. Information on Loans (Cont’d):
5.d Information on commercial loans with installments and corporate credit cards

The Bank has not granted any commercial loans with installments and corporate credit cards as of
the balance sheet date (December 31, 2007: None).

oy

Fommnt

St

S.e Domestic and foreign loans
Current Period Prior Period
_Domestic loans B _ 3.012.498 2.545.989
Foreign loans 5.642 8.283
Total 3.018.140 - 2.554.272
5.f Loans granted to subsidiaries and associates
- ) Current Period _ Prior Period
~ Direct loans granted to subsidiaries and associates 70.215 51.331
Indirect loans granted to subsidiaries and associales - -
Total 70.215 51.331
5.¢g Specific provisions provided against loans
Current Period Prior Period
. Loans and receivables with limited collectability 171 ; ...360
_Loans and receivables with doubtful collectability . R o -
Uncollectible loans and receivables 15217 18.860
Total 15388 19.420

The Bank allocates 100% provision for all non-performing loans regardless of the collaterals.
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FUKKILYLE SINAL KALKINMA BANKADI ALS.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE INTERIM PERIOD JANUARY 1, 2008 TO JUNE 30, 2008

{Amounts expressed in thousands of New Turkish Lira (TRY) unless otherwise stated.)

SECTION FIVE (Cont’d)

EXPLANATIONS AND DISCLOSURES ON UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Cont’d)

1. Explanations Related to the Assets (Cont’d)
S. Information on Loans (Cont’d): -
S5.h Information on non-performing loans (Net)

S.h.1 Information on loans and other receivables restructured or rescheduled from non-performing

e

%1

L3

t

2

o— s

loans
. Group IV. Group V. Group
Loansand Loansand |
Receivables With Recetvables With
Limited Doubtful Uncollectible Loans
Collectability Collectability and Receivables
Current Period B - _ o o e
(Gross amounts before provisions) » o - - B 2.460
Restructured loans and other receivables B - - T -
Rescheduled loans and other receivables - o - 2.460
PriorPeriod S N
(Gross amounts before provisions) - )
Restructured loans and other receivables ) - - ‘_ -
Rescheduled loans and other receivables - - 9.699
5.h.2 Movement of non-performing loans:
I11. Group IV. Group : V. Group
T T
Receivables With Receivables With
Limited Doubtful Uncollectible Loans
Collectability Collectability | and Receivables
Additions (+) 7 : 99
Transfers from other categories of non-performing
Loans (+) S S S - 337
Transfers to other categories of non-performing loans (-) 337y - B - e
_____ Collections (-) i 23 - L. (4279)
__Write-offs (-) e T e T
Corporate and Comunercial Loans - o o -
Retatl Loans ) - ) - -
Credit Cards - . - -
..... Other . e T
Current period end balance ) - a7
Specific provision (-) _ S JA821T)
[Net Balance on Balance Sheet . - -
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TURKIYE SINAI KALKINMA BANKADL ALS.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE INTERIM PERIOD JANUARY 1, 2008 TO JUNE 30, 2008

(Amounts expressed in thousands of New Turkish Lira (TRY) unless otherwise stated.)

SECTION FIVE (Cont’d)

EXPLANATIONS AND DISCLOSURES ON UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Cont’d)
L Explanations Related to the Assets (Cont’d)
5. Information on Loans (Cont’d):
5.h Information on non-performing loans (Net) (Cont’d)
5.h.3 Information on foreign currency non-performing loans and other receivables
111. Group V. Group V. Group
" Loans and Receivables Wi Loans and Receivables With Uncollectible Loans and
....... Limited Collectability __Doubtful Collectability __Receivables
Current Period ~ S SR i
Period End Balance . R - 2308
_____ Special Provision (-) . B - . (2.308)
Net Balance on Balance Sheet - o i o -
Prior Period B . I S
Period End Balance s60 -
Special Provision (-) (560) - o
Net Balance on Balance Sheet - - -

5.h.4
groups:

Information regarding gross and net amounts of non-performing loans with respect to user

1. Group

: Loans and Rccewablcs :
‘With Limited Collectability:

IV Group

V. Group

,0ans and Recelvables Wlth Unncollccublg Loans “
Doubtful Collectability

and Receivables

Othcr Loans and Receivables (Net)

Current Period (Net) S o S S T
Loans to Real Persons and Legal Entities (Gross) LA B T— e 13217
____ Specific Provision Amount (-) _ . o am ‘ 5217
Loans to Real Persons and Legal Entities (Net) o S -
Banks (Gross) U . ; -
~ Specific Provision Amount (- ) o B o o -
Banks (Net) S § _ B} -
Other Loans and Receivables (Gross) - o -
___Specific Provision Amount ) .. B B B -
mer Loans and Receivables (Net) - - -
Prior Period (Net) N S e e e e e e
Loans to Real Persons and Legal Enitis <Gross> 360 e 18860
_Specific Provision Amount () (560) . ) (8.860)
Loans to Real Persons and Legal Entities (Ney) . S B -
Banks (Gross) _ e e - - -
Specific Provision Amount (-) - - B -
Banks (Net) . - S e .
Other Loans and Receivables (Gros<) - i - - -
__Specific Provision Amount (- -) i - N -
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TURRDIY L DINAL RALKINIVIA BANKADI AL,
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE INTERIM PERIOD JANUARY 1, 2008 TO JUNE 30, 2008
(Amounts expressed in thousands of New Turkish Lira (TRY) unless otherwise stated.)

SECTION FIVE (Cont’d)

EXPLANATIONS AND DISCLOSURES ON UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Cont’d)

1. Explanations Related to the Assets (Cont’d)

S. Information on Loans (Cont’d):

S.i Main principles of liquidating loans and reccivables

If there are collaterals received complying Article 9 of the Communiqué regarding “Methods and
Principles for the Determination of Loans and Other Receivables to be Reserved for and Allocation
of Reserves™, these collaterals are converted into cash immediately using either administrative or
legal procedures in order to collect those receivables.

In cases of no collaterals, several financial investigations are made to determine whether any
property holdings are subsequently acquired by applying legal procedures, even if there is evidence
of insolvency for the debtor.

Before and after the beginning of the liquidation process; the Bank management makes
investigations on the financial data of the debtor companies. As a result of these investigations, if
the Bank management agrees that the companies show any indication of operating on an ongoing
basis and probably are going to have contributions in the economical environment in the future; the
Bank management tries to make the collection through rescheduling the payment terms.
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FTUKKIYE DINALT RALKINMA BANKADI AD.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE INTERIM PERIOD JANUARY 1, 2008 TO JUNE 30, 2008
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{ Amounts expressed in thousands of New Turkish Lira (TRY) unless otherwise stated. )

SECTION FIVE (Cont’d)

EXPLANATIONS AND DISCLOSURES ON UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Cont’d)
L Explanations Related to the Assets (Cont’d)
6. Information on Held-to-Maturity Investments:
The Bank has no investment securities held-to-maturity as at the balance sheet date (December 31,
2007: None).
6.2 Information on held-to-maturity investments given as collateral or blocked
The Bank has no investment securities held-to-maturity as at the balance sheet date (December 31,
2007: None).
6.b Held-to-maturity investments subject to repurchase agreements
As of the balance sheet date, the Bank has no investment securities held-to-maturity (December 31,
2007: None).
6.c Information on investment securities held-to-maturity
As of the balance sheet date, the Bank has no investment securities held-to-maturity (December 31,
2007: None).
6.d The movement of investment securities held-to-maturity
As of the balance sheet date, the Bank has no investment securities held-to-maturity (December 31,
2007: None).
7. Information on Associates (Net):
7.a.1 Information on associates
Bank’s sharc
percentage-1f | Bank’s risk group
different voting | share percentage
Title Address (City/ Country) percentage (%) (%)
U GOZLUK SANAYI AS. (Gozlak) lzmir/Turkey 21.71 21.71
5 [i$ FACTORING FINASMAN HIZMETLERI A'S. (Is
Factoring) Istanbul/Turkey 21.75 100.00
3 1iS FINANSAL KIRALAMA AS. (is Finansal) Istanbul/Turkey 28.56 58,54
4 IS GIRISIM SERMAYESI YATIRIM ORTAKLIGI AS.
(Is Girisim) Istanbul/Turkey 16,67 48,75
5 [SENAPA-STAMPA AMBALAJ SANAYI VE TICARET AS.
" |(Senapa) Kocaeli/Turkey 7.97 7.97
6 |TERME METAL SANAYI VE TICARET AS. (Terme) Istanbul/Turkey 17,83 18.76
7 |TSKB YATIRIM ORTAKLIGI A.S. (TSKB Y.0.) Istanbul/Turkey 29,75 44,48
8 [UNSA AMBALAJ SANAYI VE TICARET A.S. (Unsa) Istanbul/Turkey 12,00 12.00
o |YATIRIM FINANSMAN YATIRIM ORTAKLIGI AS.
(Yatinm Fin.Y.0.) Istanbul/Turkey 10,78 41,18
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TURKIYE SINAI KALKINMA BANKASI A.S.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE INTERIM PERIOD JANUARY 1, 2008 TO JUNE 30, 2008

{Amounts expressed in thousands of New Turkish Lira (TRY) unless otherwise stated.)

SECTION FIVE (Cont’d)

EXPLANATIONS AND DISCLOSURES ON UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Cont’d)
I Explanations Related to the Assets (Cont’d)
7. Information on Associates (Net) (Cont’d):

7.a.1 Information on associates (Cont’d)

Income fromy  Current
Total Marketable Period Prior

Total Fixed Interest Securities Profit Period Fair

Assets Equity Assets Income Portfolio /Loss Profit/Loss | Value
Gozlik (1) 3.908 3.397 3.252 1 - (116) (371) -
is Factoring (2) 117.668 27.509 90 808 4 18.106 1.174 -
is Finansal (3) 1.101.511 231.182 1.189 2914 22.544 46.716 31.173
is Girisim 4) 105.464 104.087 1.551 767 225 (1.454) 2.626 7.763
Senapa (5) 32.590 7.084 22.563 35 - (260) (453) -
Terme (6) 11.044 1.550 1.015 - - 498 441 -
TSKB Y.0.(7) 18.577 18.537 - - - (2.712) 2,111 2.517
Unsa (8) 72.882 21.579 22518 17 - (2.955) (1.601). -
Yatinm Fin. Y.0.(9) 12.121 12.074 - - (971) (2.285) 2.090 517

(1) Represents un-reviewed 31.03.08 financial statements. Prior year profit/loss is obtained from 31.12.07 financial statements.
(2) Represents un-reviewed 30.06.08 financial statements. Prior year profit/loss is obtained from 31.12.07 financial statements.
(3) Represents un-reviewed 31.03.08 consolidated financial statements. Prior year profit is obtained from 31.12.07 financial statements. Fair value

1s presented as of 30.06.08.
(4) Represents un-reviewed 31.03.08 consolidated financial statements. Prior year profit is obtained from 31.12.07 financial statements. Fair value

is presented as of 30.06.08.
(5) Represents un-reviewed 30.06.08 financial statements. Prior year profit/loss is obtained from 31.12.07 financial statements.
(6) Represents un-reviewed 31.03.08 financial statements. Prior year 10ss is obtained from 31.12.07 financial statements,
(7) Represents reviewed 30.06.08 financial statements. Prior year profit is obtained from 31.12.07 financial statements. Fair value is presented as of

30.06.08.

(8) Represents un- reviewed 31.03.08 financial statements. Prior year profit/loss is obtained from 31.12.07 financial statements.
(9) Represents reviewed 30.06.08 financial statements. Prior year profit is obtained from 31.12.07 financial statements. Fair value is presented as of

30.06.08

46



LUKKIY L SINAI KALKINMA BANKADI AL,
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE INTERIM PERIOD JANUARY 1, 2008 TO JUNE 30, 2008
(Amounts expressed in thousands of New Turkish Lira (TRY) unless otherwise stated.)

SECTION FIVE (Cont’d)

EXPLANATIONS AND DISCLOSURES ON UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Cont’d)
I Explanations Related to the Assets (Cont’d)
7. Information on Associates (Net) (Cont’d):

7.a.2 Information on associates

Current Period Prior Period

Balance at the Beginning of the Period 99.938 109.236
Movements During the Period . 48137y (9.298)

Purchases - 11.946

_________ Bonus Shares Obtained 12.995 329

Current Year Share of Profit - -

JoSales(f) . - - (6.849)

Revaluation Increase B - -

~__Provision for Impairment ey ~(61.132) (14.724)
Balance at the End of the Period 51801 99938

Capital Commitments B . : :

IShare Percentage at the End of the Period (%) - -

(*)The sale of all shares in Servus Bilgisayar A.S., Provus Biligim Hizmetleri A.$. and A Biligim Hizmetleri
A.S. which were established by means of using venture capital funds from the sources of European
investment Bank (“EIB”) was realized on November |, 2007, and sale proceeds were submitted to EIB on

e rv—

o=

nt

e

"

November 9, 2007 in accordance with the agreement terms.

7.a.3 Sectoral information of associates and the related carrying amounts in the legal books

Current Period

_B anks e

Prior Period

Insurance Companies
Factoring Companies 1551 1.551
Lcasiﬂqg Companies 31173 74504
Financial Service Companies ) - -
Other Associates 19077 23 883
7.a.4 Information on associates quoted on stock market:
R e Current Period : Prior Period .
Associates quoted on domestic stock markets AL970 90109

Associates quoted on foreign stock markets
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TURKIYE SINAI KALKINMA BANKASI A.S.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE INTERIM PERIOD JANUARY 1, 2008 TO JUNE 30, 2008

(Amounts expressed in thousands of New Turkish Lira (TRY) unless otherwise stated.)

SECTION FIVE (Cont’d)

EXPLANATIONS AND DISCLOSURES ON UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Cont’d)
I Explanations Related to the Assets (Cont’d)
7. Information on Associates (Net) (Cont’d):
7.5 Information on associates sold in the current period
None of the associates sold in the current period.
In the prior period, the sale of all shares in Servus Bilgisayar A.S., Provus Bilisim Hizmetleri A.S.
and A Bilisim Hizmetleri A.S. which were established by means of using venture capital funds
from the sources of European Investment Bank (“EIB”) was realized on November 1, 2007, and
sale proceeds were submitted to EIB on November 9, 2007 in accordance with the agreement
terms.
7.2.6  Information on associates purchased in the current period
During the current period, the Bank obtained TRY 12.995 Thousand bonus shares through the
capital increase of I Finansal Kiralama A.S., amounting TRY 45.500 Thousand.
During the prior period, the Bank purchased Is Faktoring Finansman Hizmetleri A.S.s 1.120.000
nominal shares with TRY 515 Thousand, and also the Bank has contributed to the capital increase
of Senapa-Stampa Ambalaj Sanayi ve Ticaret A.S, Is Finansal Kiralama A.S and Is Girisim
Sermayesi Yatinm Ortakligi A.S’s with TRY 329 Thousand, TRY 11.281 Thousand and TRY 150
Thousand, respectively.
8. Information on Subsidiaries (Net):
8.a.1 Information on subsidiaries
Bank’s share
percentage-1f  |Bank’s risk group
different voting |share percentage
Title Address (City/ Country) percentage (%) (%)
I ITSKB Gayrimenkul Degerleme A.S. istanbul /Turkey 80,00 80.00
2 Yaurim Finansman Menkul Degerler A.S. Istanbul /Turkey 95.78 98,42
3 |TSKB Gayrimenkul Yaturim Ortakligt A.S. Istanbul/Turkey 96,00 100.00
Income from
Total Marketable Current Prior
Total Shareholders Fixed Interest Securities Period Period Fair
Assets Equity Assets Income Portfolio Profit/Loss | Profit/Loss Value
TSKB GMD (1) 2.807 2.342 1.076 10 - 331 827
YF MEN.DG. (2) | 108.720 42.672 1.489 10 668 575 7.753
TSKB GYO (3) 127.319 80.720 49.360 74 37 (5) 4.024

(1) Represents un-reviewed 30.06.08 financial statements. Prior vear profit is obtained from 31.12.07 financial statements.
(2) Represents un-reviewed 30.06.08 financial statlements. Prior year profitis obtained from 31.12.07 financial statements.
(3) Represents un-reviewed 30.06.08 financial statements. Prior year profit is obtained from 31.12.07 financial statements.
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§ UK T L DIINAL RALRLNIVIA DAINKRADE ALD.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE INTERIM PERIOD JANUARY 1, 2008 TO JUNE 30, 2008

(Amounts expressed in thousands of New Turkish Lira (TRY) unless otherwise stated.)

SECTION FIVE (Cont’d)

EXPLANATIONS AND DISCLOSURES ON UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Cont’d)

L

8.

8.a.2

8.2.3

8.a.4

8.a.5

Explanations Related to the Assets (Cont’d)
Information on Subsidiaries (Net): (Cont’d)

Information on subsidiaries

o i . Current Period Prior Period
Balance at the beginning of the period — i 110338 _.._..A30.130
Movements in period 8.141 ... .70188
_ Purchases ~ ] i 64.800
Bonus shares obtained e et e e 8141 .. 17552
Current year share of profit e T e e
..... Sales B -
____Provision for impairment B -
Balance at the end of the period ; ) 118479
Capital commitments e e o — :
[Share percentage at the end of the period (%) " - -

Sectoral information on subsidiaries and the related carrying amounts in the legal books

Subsidiaries ___Current Period = PriorPeriod

Banks - ’ _ o 3 -
Facoring Companies -
" Financial Service Companies -
" Other Subsidiaries 3 118479 110338

Subsidiaries quoted on stock market

As of the balance sheet datc, the Bank has no subsidiaries quoted on the stock exchange
(December 31, 2007: None).

Subsidiaries sold in the current period

The Bank has not sold any subsidiaries in the current period (December 31, 2007: None).
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TURKIYE SINAI KALKINMA BANKASI A.S.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE INTERIM PERIOD JANUARY 1, 2008 TO JUNE 30, 2008

(Amounts expressed in_thousands of New Turkish Lira (TRY) unless otherwise stated.)

SECTION FIVE (Cont’d)
o EXPLANATIONS AND DISCLOSURES ON UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 (Cont’d)
o I. Explanations Related to the Assets (Cont’d)
L p
g 8. Information on Subsidiaries (Net): (Cont’d)
4 8.2.6  Subsidairies purchased in the current period:
i During the current period, the Bank obtained TRY 8.141 Thousand bonus shares through the
capital increase of Yatinm Finansman Menkul Degerler A.S., amounting to TRY 8.500 Thousand.
3 "3
4
B During the prior period, the Bank has contributed to the capital increase of TSKB Gayrimenkul
1 Yatinm Ortakhigi A.S. by cash amounting TRY 62.400 Thousand and increased the nominal share
o in the related subsidiary to TRY 72.000 Thousand which was a subsidiary of the Bank in the prior
e period. Bank’s share percentage which was %96 is not changed. Also, the Bank purchased 7% of
. Yatinm Finansman Menkul Degerler A.S.’s shares which were belonging to Tiirk Ticaret Bankasi
ta A.S. endorsed to Saving Deposit Insurance Fund (“SDIF”) with TRY 816.952 nominal values for
3 TRY 2.400 Thousand. The share of the Bank in the related subsidiary have been increased to 95,78
-4 % from 88,78 %. In addition, the Bank obtained TRY 17.552 Thousand bonus shares from the
! capital increase of Yatinm Finansman Menkul Degerler A.S.
E 9. Information on Entities under Common Control:
i The Bank has no entities under common control as of the balance sheet date (December 31, 2007:
) None).
i
10. Information on Finance Lease Receivables (Net):

10.a Maturities of investments on finance leases

" : Current Period Prior Period

! | ’ (lmsq R ,.‘ e

; Between -4 years . 167437 149183 ... 1e0889 . 141.928

s More than 4 years 83.990 . 68.676 106.942 86.070

Total 264.374 231127 270.695 230.762

| 10.b  The information on net investments in finance leases

Z : Current Period : Prior Period
Gross investments in finance leases 204374 270495
Uncared revenue from finance leases () - (33247) (39.933)
Cancelled finance leases (-) U -
Net investments in finance leases 231.127 230.762
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3 UKRIY E SINAL KALKINVIA BANKADL ALD.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE INTERIM PERIOD JANUARY 1, 2008 TO JUNE 30, 2008

(Amounts expressed in thousands of New Turkish 1.ira (TRY) unless otherwise stated. }

SECTION FIVE (Cont’d)

EXPLANATIONS AND DISCLOSURES ON UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Cont’d)

L Explanations Related to the Assets (Cont’d)

10. Information on Finance Lease Receivables (Net): (Cont’d)

10.c  Explanation with respect to finance lease agreements, the criteria used in determination of
contingent rents, conditions for revisions or purchase options, updates of leasing amounts
and the restrictions imposed by lease arrangements, whether arrays in repayment occur,
whether the terms of the contract are renewed, if renewed, the renewal conditions, whether
the renewal results any restrictions, and other important conditions of the leasing agreement
Finance lease agreements are made in accordance with the related articles of Financial Leasing
Law 3286. There are no restructuring or restrictions; which has material effect on financial
statements.

11. Information on Derivative Financial Assets for Hedging Purposes:
The Bank has no derivative financial assets for hedging purposes as of the balance sheet date
(December 31, 2007: None).

12. Information on Investment Property:
The Bank has no investment property (December 31, 2007: None).

13. Information on Deferred Tax Assets:

13.a  Temporary differences, tax losses, exemptions and deductions reflected to balance sheet as

deferred tax asset

The Bank has computed deferred tax asset or liability on temporary differences arising from
carrying values of assets and liabilities in the accompanying financial statements and their tax

bases.

Deferred tax asset: Current Period Prior Period
__Useful life difference of fixed assets 864 656
___Financial lease adjustments b2 652
___Derivative instrument accruals (978). _ 876]
___Employee benefit provision e 588 551
| _Loan commissions accrual adjustment 208 1424
" otherprovisions 2850 1.851
Other 195 34
Total ,, 6.727 : 6.044

In addition, TRY 7.627 Thousand deferred tax liability, which 1s calculated over the fair value
differences on available for sale securities, is offset against the “available for sale securities value
increase fund” item under equity.
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LURD X E DMINAL RALNINIVIA BAINKNADE AD.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE INTERIM PERIOD JANUARY 1, 2008 TO JUNE 30,2008

(Amounts expressed in thousands of New Turkish Lira (TRY) unless otherwise stated.)

SECTION FIVE( Cont’d)

EXPLANATIONS AND DISCLOSURES ON UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Cont’d)

I. Explanations Related to the Assets (Cont’d):

13. Information on Deferred Tax Assets (Cont’d):

13.b  Temporary differences over which deferred tax asset are not computed and recorded in the
balance sheet in prior periods, if so, their expiry date, losses and tax deductions and
exceptions
The Bank has no deductible temporary differences that are not included in calculation of deferred
tax asset and not reflected to financial statements in prior periods.

13.c  Allowance for deferred tax and deferred tax assets from reversal of allowance
As of the balance sheet date, the Bank has no allowance for deferred tax and deferred tax assets
from reversal of allowance.

14. Information on Assets Held for Sale
As of the balance sheet date, the Bank has TRY 10.510 Thousand of assets held for sale
(December 31, 2007: TRY 10.510 Thousand).

1S. Information about Other Assets:

15.a Other assets which exceed 10% of the balance sheet total (excluding off balance sheet

commitments) and breakdown of these which constitute at least 20% of grand total

Other assets are not exceeding 10% of total assets, excluding off-balance sheet commitments
(December 31, 2007: None).
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LUKRLY L DINAL RALKIINVIA BAINLADL ALD.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE INTERIM PERIOD JANUARY 1, 2008 TO JUNE 30, 2008

(Amounts expressed in thousands of New Turkish Lira (TRY) unless otherwise stated.)

SECTION FIVE (Cont’d)

EXPLANATIONS AND DISCLOSURES ON UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Cont’d)
1L Explanations Related to the Liabilities
1. Information of Maturity Structure of Deposits:
l.a.1 Maturity structure of deposits
The Bank is not authorized to accept deposits.
1.a.2 Information on saving deposits under the guarantee of saving deposit insurance fund and
exceeding the limit of deposit insurance fund
The Bank is not authorized to accept deposits.
1.b  Information on the scope whether the Bank with a foreign head office suits saving deposit
insurance of the related country
The Bank is not authorized to accept deposits.
l.c Saving deposits which are not under the guarantee of deposit insurance fund
The Bank is not authorized to accept deposits.
2. Information on Derivative Financial Liabilities Held-For-Trading:
2.a Negative differences table related to derivative financial liabilities held-for-trading
Prior Period
Derivative financial liabilities held for trading . riorTene e
ORI amtrers garen ¢ mrr N »TRY S FC ISR
.. Forward Transactions . ... .. _...610
~_ Swap Transactions ) ~ . 20272 500
o Optioms S— 10898 12.790
Other - - 142
Total 14.768 31.780 . 13.432
Information on Funds Borrowed:
.a Information on banks and other financial institutions
. Current Period
e TRY _Fe
_Loans from Central Bank of Turkey o -
_ From Domestic Banks and Institutions 58029 M9 9313
From Foreign Banks, Institutions and Funds 4.155 3.538.694 4155 3052720
Total 62.184 | 3.552.143 53.077  3.062.033
3.b Maturity analysis of funds borrowed
Current Period Prior Period
TRY FC . TRY FC
Short-term — S 58.029 563.560 © ,‘;,42:@2_&3,..,.v._.,.v,,_,§.7-_3_~(1‘!.9..,,
Medium and long-term 4.155 2.988.583 | 4.155 2.538.393
[Total 62.184 . 3.552.143 53.177 ¢ 3.062.033
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LURMI I L SUVAL DALNINVEA DAINDADL A.D.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE INTERIM PERIOD JANUARY 1, 2008 TO JUNE 30, 2008

{Amounts expressed in thousands of New Turkish Lira (TRY) unless otherwise stated.)

SECTION FIVE (Cont’d)

EXPLANATIONS AND DISCLOSURES ON UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Cont’d)

I1. Explanations Related to the Liabilities (Cont’d)

4. Other Liabilities which Exceed 10% of the Balance Sheet Total (Excluding Off-Balance Sheet
Commitments) and the Breakdown of These which Constitute at Least 20% of Grand Total:
There are no other liabilities which exceed 10% of the balance sheet total {December 31, 2007:
None).

5. Explanations on Financial Lease Obligations (Net):

S5.a The general explanations on criteria used in determining installments of financial lease
agreements, renewal and purchasing options and restrictions in the agreements that create
significant obligations to the bank
The Bank entered into the financial lease transactions with its affiliate; is Finansal Kiralama A.S.
and Vakif Finansal Kiralama A.S.. The lease agreements are paid in equal installments. There are
no issues in these transactions bringing important liabilities to the Bank.

5.b The explanation on modifications in agreements and new obligations that these modifications
cause
There are no changes in financial leasing contracts.

S.c Explanations on finance lease payables

: Current Period ; Prior Period ) )
I e Gross o Ne o Gross L Net
Lessthan Lyear s 30
Between I- 4 years SR U L 2
More than 4 years - e ;
Total 548 . 524 355 342

S5d Explanations regarding operational leases:

As of the balance sheet date, the Bank’s 2 head office buildings and 3 branches are subject to
operational leasing. Additionally, 21 cars are within the context of operational leasing. The Bank
has no obligations for operational leases in the current period (December 31, 2007: 2 head office
buildings, 3 branches and 21 cars were subject to operational leasing).

S.e Explanations on the lessor and lessee in sales and lease back transactions, agreement
conditions, and major agreement terms:

The Bank has no sale and lease back transactions as of the balance sheet date {December 31, 2007:
None).
6. Information on Derivative Financial Liabilities for Hedging Purposes:

The Bank has no derivative financial liabilities for hedging purposes as of the balance sheet date
(December 31, 2007: None).
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TURKIYE SINAI KALKINMA BANKASI A.S.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE INTERIM PER1OD JANUARY 1, 2008 TO JUNE 30, 2008

(Amounts expressed in thousands of New Turkish Lira (TRY) unless otherwise staled.)

SECTION FIVE (Cont’d)

EXPLANATIONS AND DISCLOSURES ON UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{(Cont’d)

II.

7.

7.a

7.b

7.c.1

T.c.2

Explanations Related to the Liabilities (Cont’d)
Information on Provisions:

Information on general loan loss provisions:

Current Period : Prior Period
_ General Loan Loss Provisions D 23.620_;; - 19.396
Provisions for First Group Loans and Receivables 19837 15678 |
Provisions for Second Group Loans and Receivables -__ 2
....... Provisions for non-Cash Loans _ R 837 660
Other 2.946 3.056

Foreign exchange losses on the foreign currency indexed loans and finance lease receivables:
The foreign exchange losses on the foreign currency indexed loans amount to TRY 51.839
Thousand (December 31, 2007: TRY 83.669 Thousand). The foreign exchange losses on the
foreign currency indexed loans are netted off from the loans in the financial statements.

Information related to other provisions:

Provision for possible losses:

Current Period Prior Period
11.808 6.808

Provisions for Possible Losses

If other provisions exceeds 10% of total provisions, the name and amount of sub-accounts

. Current Period Prior Period
Provision for Possible Losses . L8s. 6808
Provision for Dividend Received from Subsidiaries i 2.424 . 2.424

Explanations on the Number of Subordinated Loans the Bank Used, Maturity, Interest Rate,
Institution that the Loan was Borrowed From, and Conversion Option, If Any:

The Bank has signed an agreement with the International Finance Corporation, for a subordinated
loan of USD 50 Million (TRY 61.125 Thousand). The interest expense accrual of this borrowing is
TRY (2.471) Thousand as of the balance sheet date.

The first agreement date of the loan was September 21, 2004. The first usage date was November

5, 2004. The interest rate is variable; at the balance sheet date it is (2,712+2,5 spread) 5,212%.
There is no principle repayment during the first 5 years and the maturity is October 15, 2016.
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TUKRIYE DINAL KALKINVIA BANIKADI AL,
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE INTERIM PERIOD JANUARY 1, 2008 TO JUNE 30, 2008

{Amounts expressed in thousands of New Turkish Lira (TRY) unless otherwise stated.)

SECTION FIVE (Cont’d)

EXPLANATIONS AND DISCLOSURES ON UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Cont’d)
IL Explanations Related to the Liabilities (Cont’d)

9. Information on Taxes Payable:

Current Period

TRY FC

"TRY | FC

Prior Period

Corporatetaxpayable 6576 33689 -
Deferred tax liability - - - -
Total 6.576 . 33.689 -
9.a Information on deferred taxes liabilities

At the balance sheet date, the Bank has no deferred tax liability (December 31, 2007 None).

9.a.1 Information on taxes payable

Current Period

_..Corporate taxes payable

Taxation of marketable securities

_ Property tax

Banking and Insurance Transaction Tax (BITT

......Foreign Exchange Transaction Tax
.. Value Added Tax Payable
Other

Prior Period

... 33689
203

Total

36.226

9.a.2 Information on premiums

Current Period

.. Social Security Premiums-Employee

_Social Security Premiums-Employer

.. Bank Social Aid Pension Fund Premium-Employec

Prior Period

. Bank Social Aid Pension Fund Premium-Employer =~ . -
_ Pension Fund Membership Fees and Provisions-Employee  © .~ ”
. Pension Fund Membership Fees and Provisions-Employer - . L
. Unemployment insurance-Employee . I | R AL
Other - )
Total : 32 32
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TURKIYE SINAT KALKINMA BANKAST AS.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FORT

{Amount

HE INTERIM PERIOD JANUARY 1, 2008 TO JUNE 30, 2008

s expressed in thousands of New Turkish Lira (TRY) unless otherwise stated.)

SECTI

ON FIVE (Cont’d)

EXPLANATIONS AND DISCLOSURES ON UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Cont’d)

11

10.

10.a

10.b

10.c

10.d

Explanations Related to the Liabilities (Cont’d)
Information on Shareholders’ Equity:

Presentation of paid-in capital

Common stock ) B I _.500.000 .. 400.000

CurrenluPehrﬂiod B Prior Period

Preferred stock

Paid-in capital amount, explanation as to whether the registered share capital system ceiling
is applicable at bank, if so, amount of registered share capital

Registered Capital System ORI R UT 500000 . . 1.000.000

Capital System Paid-in capital Ceiling

In the current period, the Bank’s registered share capital ceiling has been raised up to TRY
| .000.000 Thousand from TRY 400.000 Thousand. This increase has been approved by BRSA as
of March 15, 2007 and by Turkish Ministry of Industry and Trade as of March 20, 2007 and
registered by Turkish Ministry of Industry and Trade on March 28, 2007.

Information on share capital increases and their sources; other information on increased
capital shares in current period

In the current period, the Bank’s share capital has increased by TRY 100.000 Thousand. TRY
84.000 Thousand of this increase, in respect of the resolution of the General Assembly, is
transferred from the profit of the year 2007 and TRY 16.000 Thousand from the share capital
inflation restatement adjustment. The increase in paid capital is approved by the BRSA on April
I, 2008 and by the resolution of the Capital Markets Board numbered 15/582 on May 23, 2008.
The registration has been completed by T.C. istanbul Ticaret Sicili Memurlugu on May 30, 2008
and this increase has been recorded to the capital account.

During the prior period, as per February 16, 2007 dated Board of Directors resolution, under the
registered share capital, the Bank has increased its capital from TRY 300.000 Thousand to TRY
400.000 Thousand. In respect of the resolution of General Assembly, TRY 50.000 Thousand of
this increase was transferred from the profit of the year 2006 and TRY 50.000 Thousand from the
share capital inflation restatement adjustment. TRY 100.000 Thousand nominal shares issued for
the capital increase was registered with the Capital Markets Board on May 7, 2007 according to the
provisions of the Capital Markets Law No 2499. The capital increase was approved by BRSA on
April 19,2007 and published in the Turkish Trade Registry Gazette on July 5, 2007.

Information on share capital increases from capital reserves

In the current period, the amount transferred to capital from share capital inflation restatement
adjustment which was followed under other capital reserves, is TRY 16.000 Thousand.
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L UNDUI XL OKYAL NALNINIVIA DAINDADL AD.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE INTERIM PERIOD JANUARY 1, 2008 TO JUNE 30,2008

(Amounts expressed in thousands of New Turkish Lira (TRY) unless otherwise stated.)

SECTION FIVE (Cont’d)

EXPLANATIONS AND DISCLOSURES ON UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMEN TS

(Cont’d)

1I. Explanations Related to the Liabilities (Cont’d)

10. Information on Shareholders’ Equity (Cont’d):

10.c  Capital commitments in the last fiscal year and at the end of the following interim period, the
general purpose of these commitments and projected resources required to meet these
commitments
The Bank has no capital commitments in the last fiscal year and at the end of the following interim
period.

10.f  Indicators of the Bank’s income, profitability and liquidity for the previous periods and
possible effects of these future assumptions on the Bank’s equity due to the uncertainty of
these indicators
The prior period income, profitability and liquidity of the Bank and their trends in the successive
periods are followed by Financial Controlling Department by considering the outcomes of the
potential changes in the foreign exchange rate, interest rate and maturity alterations on profitability
and liquidity under several different scenario analysis. The Bank operations are profitable, and the
Bank keeps the major part of its profit by capital increases or capital reserves within the
shareholders equity.

10.g  Information on preferred shares
The Bank has no preferred shares.

10.h  Information on marketable securities value increase fund

Current Period Prior Period
TRY FC TRY = FC

From Associates, Subsidiaries. and Entitics
... Under Common Control  (30381) - 30751 -
......Yaluation Differences R GL776) . (31.921) 8662 (143

Foreign Exchange Difference § - - - -
Total ; (62.157) (31.921) 39.413 (143)

11. Information on Minority Shares:

There are no minority shares in the accompanying unconsolidated financial statements.
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TUORKIYE SINAI KALKINMA BANKASI A S.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE INTERIM PERIOD JANUARY 1, 2008 TO JUNE 30, 2008

(Amounts expressed in thousands of New Turkish Lira (TRY) unless otherwise stated.)

SECTION FIVE (Cont’d)

EXPLANATIONS AND DISCLOSURES ON UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

{(Cont’d)

II1. Explanations Related to the Off-Balance Sheet Contingencies and Commitments

1. Information on Off-Balance Sheet Liabilities:

l.a Nature and amount of irrevocable loan commitments
None other than those disclosed in 1.b.1 and 1.b.2 below.

I.b Possible losses and commitments related to off-balance sheet items including items listed
below

1.b.1 Non-cash loans including guarantees, acceptances, financial collaterals and other letters of
credits
As of the balance sheet date, total letter of credits is TRY 203.225 Thousand (December 31, 2007:
TRY 176.439 Thousand).

1.b.2 Guarantees, surety ships, and similar transactions
As of the balance sheet date, total letters of guarantee is TRY 274.960 Thousand (December 31,
2007: TRY 217.054 Thousand).

l.c.1 Total amount of non-cash loans

e . - Current Period ~_Prior Period _
Non-cash loans given against achieving cash loans _;,_29,-.,2._19.1,__ 90161
 With maturity of 1 year or less than 1 year R -
__With maturity of more than 1 vear 99210 9Ll6l
Other non-cash loans 478.185 393.570
Total 577.395° 484.731
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UMY E SHVAL RALRINIVIA BANKADI ALD.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE INTERIM PERIOD JANUARY 1, 2008 TO JUNE 30,2008

{Amounts expressed in thousands of New Turkish Lira (TRY) unless otherwise stated.)

SECTION FIVE (Cont’d)

EXPLANATIONS AND DISCLOSURES ON UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Cont’d)

I Explanations Related to the Off-Balance Sheet Contingencies and Commitments (Cont’d)

1. Information on Off-Balance Sheet Liabilities (Cont’d):
1.c.2  Information on sectoral risk breakdown of non-cash loans:
_— Current Period : _Prior Period I
TRY (%)  FC (%)  TRY (%) FC (%)
Agriculture : - - 2.302 . o . - _ -
Farming and slockbreedi;é, 7 . . 2302 - . - - -
B Forestry . N . . - . - - -
| Fishing . . o . o .
Industry B 49916 50 232143 49 30810 45 184.354 44
Mining . 2 . . - . . -
Manufacturing industry 7.962 s 174.098 37 12 159.442 38
Electricity, gas, water 41954 42 5804512 3. 24912 6]
Construction 20775 21 12536 3 15 309 -
Services 20228, 29 230487 48 29403 2. 23074 56
Wholesale and retail trade , - o 127.247° 26 . - 132.684 32
Hotel, food ;;nd beverage service—;”mvmw . . - ﬂ . - . - .
Transportation and : : .
communication 8 292514 19 Z...c... .. 8808 21
Financial instiutions 25226 25 73% 2 25233 3% 6984 2
Real asset and leasing services - 3390 1. 168 - 2071 |
Self-employment services 4000 4. I 4000 6. S
Education services - - ) - - - - -
Health and social services . - - - - -
T R 3 ...... : — e 3 E :
Total 99.927 100 477.468 100 69.344 100 : 415387 100
1.c.3 Information on 1*' and 2" group non-cash loans
I Growp o WMGrowp
Non-cash loans e ATTAG8 -
Letters of guarantee 175,041 - -
Bank acceptances . - T T
| Letters of credit 203 S -
Purchase Guarantees on Issuance :
of Securities e - B - - ) -
Factoring guarantees - - - -
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TURKIYE SINAI KALKINMA BANKASI A.S.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE INTERIM PERIOD JANUARY 1, 2008 TO JUNE 30, 2008

(Amounts expressed in_thousands of New Turkish Lira (TRY) unless otherwise stated.)

SECTION FIVE (Cont'd)

EXPLANATIONS AND DISCLOSURES ON UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Cont’d)

11

2.

Explanations Related to the Off-Balance Sheet Contingencies and Commitments (Cont’d)
Explanations on Contingent Liabilities and Assets:

There are 5 legal cases against the Bank which are amounting to TRY 11 Thousand as of the
balance date.

The Bank's subsidiary, Is Factoring Finansman Hizmetleri A.$., had a tax inspection and tax
penalty notifications were sent to Is Factoring Finansman Hizmetleri A.S. within the context of the
article 16 of the Corporate Tax Law. I Factoring A.$ has brought a lawsuit against the relevant
authorities concerning the cancellation of the given tax penalty notifications and on condition of
keeping a right to bring a lawsuit in 2005 and paid to TRY 4.265 thousand to the tax office
regarding the amounts claimed for the notifications. Subsequently, Is Factoring Finansman
Hizmetleri A.S. has lost the pendmg lawsuits against the tax authorities with a right to appeal to the
State Council for the suspension of the execution of the decisions. Furthermore, is Factoring
applied to the Ministry of Finance on the condition of saving all its legal rights, to postpone its
liability and to structure a repayment plan and subsequently, started to pay based on the notified
repayment schedule.

Subsequent to the overrule of Fourth Instance of the Council of the State the decision made by the
3rd Tax Court in Istanbul on April 10, 2007 and all tax payments of Is Factoring that are made
through an installment plan are suspended. Subsequent to the State of Council’s decision in favor
of Is Factoring, law suits have been accepted by the Ist Tax Court in istanbul and based on the
resolution of this Court, the restitution of letter of guarantees and amounts collected by Tax Offices
has been decided and [s Factoring has requested restitution of payment amounts from Beyoglu and
Besiktas Tax Offices. The restitution of payments has been realized in June 2008 by Tax Offices.
As those lawsuits were resulted in favor of Is Factoring, is Factoring management reversed the
provision amount which was allocated in prior years as a result of the restitution by Tax Offices
and recognized the related amount as an income in the current period.
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TURKIYE SINAi KALKINMA BANKASI A.S.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE INTERIM PERIOD JANUARY 1, 2008 TO JUNE 30, 2008

(Amounts expressed in thousands of New Turkish Lira (TRY) unless otherwise stated.)

SECTION FIVE (Cont’d)

EXPLANATIONS AND DISCLOSURES ON UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Cont’d)

1V.

1.a

1.b

2.b

Explanations Related to the Statement of Income

Information on interest on loans

Current Pertod

Prlor Period

e o TRY FC . TRY e
Intereston loans ) : S R
Short term loans ) 2.062 1.178 1231 e 927
) 36.763 50.559 . 28.046 7 54.139
. 1.327 231 8% :

Premiums received from Resource Utilization :
Support Fund - - -
Total 40.152 51.968 30.113 55.066

Information on interest received from banks

Current Period

Prior Period

........... Ry R
- Thc Central Ba"" Of 1 ”rl‘e) I - e B N
. 852, 1206 438, 2548
FOfC'g" ba"‘\s B R 3 V38 3622
Branches and hcad oﬁlcc abroad - - - -
Total 855 1.587 747 6.170
Information on interest income received from associates and subsidiaries
Current Period Prior Period
Interest received from associates and subsidiaries 1.555 485
Information on interest on funds borrowed
Current Period Prior Period
TRY  FC TRY  FC
Banks i 2465 2112 LI 1499
_The Ce""a' Ba"" 0‘ T“”‘e> <2 . 2 -

Domesm bankq

_ Foreign bankq »

Branchcs and head ottlcc abroad o

Lels o 1el2

802

178 2099
4. 12291

Oﬁl},r fnanual lllbllllltl()lN ) - ;il 95:;“ 7 - - o “5—6332
Total 2.465 63.080 1.184 71322

Information on interest expense to associates and subsidiaries

The Bank has no interest expense to its associates and subsidiaries.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE INTERIM PERIOD JANUARY 1, 2008 TO JUNE 30, 2008

(Amounts expressed in thousands of New Turkish Lira {TRY) unless otherwise stated.)

SECTION FIVE (Cont’d)

EXPLANATIONS AND DISCLOSURES ON UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Cont’d)

IVv. Explanations Related to the Statement of Income (Cont’d)

3. Information on Net Trading Income (Net):
Current Period Prior Period
l’rof't 409.277 141.054
Gains on capital market operations 128.101 60.451
_On derivative financial instruments e o 125.224 49,798
~ Other » o 2.877 10.653
Forelgn exchange gains o 28] 176 _ 80.603
Losses (-) N (417.559) (135.984)
Losses on capital market operations : (123.177) : (43.180) |
~ On derivative financial instruments (116.098) (38.198)
Other - ) i (7.079) (4.982)
Foreign exchange losses - (294.382) (92.804)
4. Information Related with Other Operating Income:
Currcnl Period Prior Period
Prowsmns Rele;;éd i ) 4. 47] 1.426
Gams on Sale of Assets “ N 1. 890
FrommA;;‘ocmle and Subsidiary Sales
—Fro‘m lmmovablc leed Asset Sales
rron1 Pmpcru Sale e e e
. Hom Other A:,\el S - R &
O _ —— = -
Total 7.528 2.108
5. Provision Expenses Related to Loans and Other Receivables of The Bank:
Currenl Perlod Prior Period
§_peciﬂﬁ_gp‘r_9} isions tor loans and other receivables . 270 144
LWV Growp B e -
General provision expenses o . 2.435
Provision expenses for possible losses o ) -
Foreign exchange differences on foreign currency losses ) -
Marketable securities impairment expenses B B 257
. _Tradingsecurities S S -
lnvestmcnl securities avallable forsale T ) 2539 257
» Assocnates ) B -
. SUbS'd'dneS . - [ e )
[:nlmes under common control (joint vent. ) B
lnveslmem securities held to maturity o - -
lmpalrmenl on assets held forfﬂc - -
Other ) )
Total f 12.033 2.836
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L URKE T AL OLINAL DNALNINIVIA DAINDNNADE ALD.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE INTERIM PERIOD JANUARY 1, 2008 TO JUNE 30, 2008

(Amounts expressed in thousands of New Turkish Lira (TRY) unless otherwise stated.)

SECTION FIVE (Cont’d)

EXPLANATIONS AND DISCLOSURES ON UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{(Cont’d)

1V. Explanations Related to the Statement of Income {Cont’d)

6. Information Related to Other Operating Expenses:

Personnel expenses

Current Period

Prior Period

12.175

Reserve for employee termination benefits i i

Bank social aid fund deficit provision - " - -

fmpairment expenses of fixed assets R .

Depreciation e;\'penses of fixed assets " 521 849

Impalrment expenses of intangible assets _ .

Impalrment expense of goodwill : o -

Amortization expenses of intangible assets 9% 66

Impalrment on subsidiaries accounted for under equity method

Depreciation expenses of assets held for resale

Impdlrment expenses of assets held for sale and dlscontlnued operatlons

Othcr operatlng expcnscs f 6.598 3132
Rent expeme: — 2306 -
Mamtenal”]ce expenses i T 2~97 : 123
I, S . S S /S 519,
Other e\'penscs 3.623 | 2.490
o sales ot e 3OB _-
Other f 3910 3.988
[Total 26.266 : 20.996
7. Information on Tax Provision for Taxes on Income:
7.a Information on current tax charge or benefit and deferred tax charge or benefit

The current tax charge for the perlod is TRY 6.576 Thousand (June 30, 2007: TRY 17.338
Thousand). Deferred tax charge is TRY 9.048 Thousand (June 30, 2007: TRY 5.848 Thousand
deferred tax benefit).
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SECTION FIVE (Cont’d)

EXPLANATIONS AND DISCLOSURES ON UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Cont’d)

IV. Explanations Related to the Statement of Income (Cont’d)

7. Information on Tax Provision for Taxes on Income (Cont’d):

7.b Information related to deferred tax charge or benefit on temporary differences
Deferred tax charge calculated on temporary differences is TRY 9.048 Thousand (June 30, 2007:
TRY 5.848 Thousand deferred tax benefit).

7.c Information related to deferred tax charge on temporary differences, losses, tax deductions
and exceptions
As of June 30, 2008 deferred tax charge calculated based on temporary differences is TRY 9.048
Thousand (June 30, 2007: TRY 5.848 Thousand deferred tax benefit). There is no deferred tax
benefit or charge reflected to the income statement on carry forward tax losses, tax deductions and
exceptions (June 30, 2007: None).

8. Information on net profit/loss from continued and discontinued operations:
The net profit of the Bank increased for the period ended June 30, 2008 by 31,25% compared to
the prior period.

9. Information on Net Profit/Loss

9.a The nature and amount of certain income and expense items from ordinary operations is
disclosed if the disclosure for nature, amount and repetition rate of such items is required for
the complete understanding of the Bank's performance for the period
The Bank has generated TRY 218.876 Thousand interest income, TRY 115.945 Thousand interest
expenses and TRY 1.782 Thousand net fee and commission income from banking operations.

9.b The effect of the change in accounting estimates to the net profit/loss; including the effects to
the future period, if any
There are no changes in the accounting estimates and accordingly any effect on the financial
statement items.

9.c Minority share of profit and loss
There is no profit and loss attributable to minority interest in the accompanying unconsolidated
financial statements.

10. If the Other Items in the Income Statement Exceed 10% of the Income Statement Total,

Accounts amounting to at least 20% of These Items are Shown Below:

None other than those explained in note V.4 and IV 6.
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TURKIYE SINAI KALKINMA BANKASI A.S.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE INTERIM PERIOD JANUARY 1, 2008 TO JUNE 30, 2008

(Amounts expressed in thousands of New Turkish Lira (TRY) unless otherwise stated.)

SECTION FIVE (Cont’d)

EXPLANATIONS AND DISCLOSURES ON UN CONSOLIi)ATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Cont’d)

V. Explanations on the Risk Group of the Bank

1. Information on the Volume of Transactions Related to the Bank’s Own Risk Group,
Outstanding Loan and Deposit Transactions and Income and Expenses of the Period:

l.a Current Period

Direct and indirect

Other entities included

nnnnnnnnn Subsidiaries and associates shareholders_ of the Bank inthe risk group
) _Cash  Noncash  Cah ___ Noncash Cash . Noneash |
Loans and other receivables o k
Balance at beginning of ; '
period 46778 ... 168 - 24347 65319 . .225
Balance at end of period 65.749 168 24347 60398 225
Interest and commission ‘ ;
income 1.363 - - 12 1.319: -

(*)Defined in the Paragraph 2 of the Article 20 of the “Regulation on the Establishment and Operations of Banks™.

1.b Prior Period

. Direct and indirect Other entities included
. c(*)

isk Group ofthe Bank () usidiaries and associates _ shareholders of the Bank in the risk proup
.. Cash . Nomcash  Cash | Noncash  Cash Nan-cash
|_oans and other receivablesj : B o 5

Balance at beginning of 5

_period 9964, M68 - 24347 81199 225

Balance atendofperiod 46778 168 T .24347 65319 225
Interest and commission | :
income received (**) : 348 - - 12 2.189 -

(*) Defined in the Paragraph 2 of the Article 20 of the “Regulation on the Establishment and Operations of Banks™.

(**) The data belongs to June 30, 2007.

l.c Information on deposit held by Bank’s own risk group

The Bank is not authorized to accept deposits.

2. Information on Forward, Option and Other Similar Agreements made with the Bank’s Own

Risk Group:

The Bank has no forward, option and other similar agreements with the Bank’s own risk group.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE INTERIM PERIOD JANUARY 1, 2008 TO JUNE 30, 2008

(Amounts expressed in thousands of New Turkish Lira (TRY) unless otherwise stated.)

SECTION SIX
OTHER EXPLANATIONS
L Other Explanations Related to the Operations of the Bank

La Brief Information Related to Rating Carried Out By International Rating Firms:

FITCH RATINGS
Foreign Currency
Long-term Maturity BB-
Outlook Stable
Short-term Maturity B
Turkish Lira
Long-term Maturity BB+
Outlook Stable
Short-term Maturity B
National
Long-term Maturity AA+(tur)
Outlook Stable
Individual C/D
Support 3

Information above is received from Fitch Ratings report dated February 4, 2008.

MOODY’S
Financial Rating Note D+
Outlook Stable
Foreign Currency
Long-term Maturity Bl
Outlook Stable
Short-term Maturity N/P

Information above is received from Moody’s Investors Service report dated January 3,
2008.

2. Significant Events and Matters Arising Subsequent to Balance Sheet Date

There is no significant events and matters arising subsequent to balance sheet.
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SECTION SEVEN

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ LIMITED REVIEW REPORT

I

II.

Explanations for Independent Auditors’ Limited Review Report

The financial statements and the notes to the financial statements as at June 30, 2008 have been
reviewed by DRT Bagimsiz Denetim ve Serbest Muhasebeci Mali Miisavirlik A.S. (“Member Firm
of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu™).

The independent auditors’ limited review report is presented at the beginning of the financial
statements and related notes.

Explanations and Notes Prepared by Independent Auditor

There are no other explanations and notes not expressed in sections above related with Bank’s
operations.
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